16l B BK

DAOHE GLOBAL

Daohe Global Group Limited
BENRREERRRAF
(Formerly known as Linmark Group Limited)
(AIEMHEEEARAR")

Stock Code FR 31X 55%: 915

220

ANNUAL
REPORT

*For identification purpose only {£#5 5






Contents B &%

Financial Highlights BA 7 &

Chairman's Statement T ERE =

Management Discussion and Analysis & 3% /8 5 7% S O 4T

Biographical Details of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary
EE SREERERARIMEER

Corporate Governance Report A R)BIATRE

Reports and Financial Statements ¥R 2 K8 @&

- Report of the Directors EEHEHEE

- Independent Auditors' Report ¥ % Eiffishes =

- Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 4R & B35 &

- Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 474 2 Wz &
- Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4R & B # AR &R

- Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &7 & i E B K

- Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows A& IR & MER

- Statement of Financial Position Bf %R0 &

- Notes to the Financial Statements BA 75 $R & =+

Five-Year Financial Summary AF IS E

Corporate Information 2 &) & ¥}

Shareholder Information A% 5 & ¥t



EE—————

Financial Highlights

Tz 437
smE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F %
Increase/
US$'000 Us$'000 (Decrease)
FErn FET 12/ (")
Operating Results REEE
Revenue Wes 97,872 103,397 (5.3)
EBITDA BRASZH - BE -
P& R HAEF 2,958 5,611 (47.3)
Operating profit R 2,685 4855 (44.7)
Profit for the year FEF] 1,676 4,456 (62.4)
Financial Position AR
Total assets BERE 51,358 50,715 13
Cash and bank balances Be MRITES 17,044 14,611 16.7
Net assets BEFE 32,588 32,717 (0.4)
Financial Ratio Yy IR
Current ratio (Times) ML (%) 1.4 14 -
Gearing ratio (%) BAREELE (%) - - NJA 3@ A
Dividends and Distribution BB KRk
Distribution per share (HK cents) (Note) &% 7k CBAL) (#77) - 2.928 NJA NE R
Interim dividend per share (HK cent) (Note) &A% HRRZS (&AL ) (#77) 0.192 0.20 (4.0)
Final dividend per share (HK cent) (Note) &R RHERRZE CBAL) (H77) 0.05 0.242 (79.3)
Full year dividend and distribution BREFRER
per share (HK cents) (Note) Dk (B (4722) 0.242 3.37 (92.8)
Note: Bzt
Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015, as further ER—Z-AFRNAGKROFANTEELRE - B5
explained in Note 36 to the financial statements. REHTEE 36 EIE— S HEREE o
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Breakdown of Revenue by Nature

BEBHER D 2 Wm

FY2014 FY2015

® Provision of services ® Sales of merchandise

AR [EEEEES

Breakdown of Shipment Value by Market
BR8N EERE

FY2014 FY2015

3

® North America 1E3) ® FEurope BU) ©® Australia JEIM ® Africa FEM @ Others EHAfth

Shipment Value Revenue
HEE#E Wz
(US $'million) (B &Z7T) (US $'million) (A& ZETT)

"FY": Financial year ended 30 April
BEONA=TRAZHRFE

EAEREEARAT —T—TEFH 3



4

h—

Chairman’s Statement

ETRBES

On behalf of the board ("Board") of directors ("Directors"), | wish to present the annual
results of Daohe Global Group Limited, formerly known as Linmark Group Limited,
("Company", together with its subsidiaries, the "Group" or "Daohe Global") for the year
ended 30 April 2015.

The latest financial year has continued to present several challenges to the Group, including
weak economic development in Europe, and cautious consumption sentiment in the United
States during this period. Consequently, most of our customers continued to adopt a highly
cautious approach towards restocking inventory. The performance decline of both our sales
of merchandise and provision of services business segments reflects this trend.

Despite the recent downturn and short term challenges we foresee, we remain optimistic
about the Group's long-term prospects. Our optimism was the impetus behind the decision
by Mr. ZHANG Qi and me, as the owners of Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited, to
take a controlling interest in the Company in late January of this year. Through the efforts
of Mr. Zhang as chief executive officer, myself as non-executive chairman and incumbent
and new members of the management team, | trust that the Group will again gather growth
momentum and achieve new milestones going forward.

It is worth recalling as well that aside from a bolstered management team, the Group's
attributes include a dynamic portfolio of products and services, long-standing ties with key
customers and vendors, a healthy balance sheet, and a gearing ratio of zero. Our recent
successful share placement in June 2015 further strengthened our balance sheet. Through
the placement, we are now in an even stronger financial position, have a broader shareholder
base and are well prepared for seizing opportunities that may arise in the future.

“Linmark" is an established and trusted brand with a 50-year history. We expect to develop
our existing business under the “Linmark" brand, as part of our portfolio of holdings. At the
same time, the Company's new name, "Daohe Global", reflects our ambitions of the Group to
grow and to pursue new opportunities as they arise. With our new name and with renewed
energy, we expect to see the Group grow from strength to strength in the years to come.

As the new chairman of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
appreciation to the Board for their support and contributions over the past year. The
management team and every member of the Group's workforce also deserve recognition as
well for their dedication and diligence. In addition, special mention must go to Mr. WANG Lu
Yen, our outgoing chairman and chief executive officer, for his many years of outstanding
service, who now holds the title of honorary chairman (non-executive and not a member
of the Board) and will provide valuable advice and assistance in this year. Lastly, all of
our business partners, customers and shareholders warrant our sincere gratitude for their
unflagging support.

ZHOU Xijian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 July 2015
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EERAG)([RAT]  EREMMBAFSHEARER] K[EM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI

BIEER

Business Review

Overview

The business environment remained difficult during
the year ended 30 April 2015, with both of the Group's
operating segments, specifically sales of merchandise and
provision of services, experiencing a decline in shipment
value, with overall shipments dropping by approximately
8.2% from approximately US$262.6 million (equivalent to
HK$2,048.3 million) last year to approximately US$241.1
million (equivalent to HK$1,880.6 million) this year.

The Group's revenue dropped by approximately 5.3%
from approximately US$103.4 million (equivalent to
HK$806.5 million) last year to approximately US$97.9
million (equivalent to HK$763.6 million) for the reporting
year.

Gross profit decreased by around 7.3% from approximately
US$27.0 million (equivalent to HK$210.6 million) last year
to approximately US$25.0 million (equivalent to HK$195.0
million) this year.

The general and administrative expenses remained at a
similar level with last year, amounting to approximately
US$23.3 million (equivalent to HK$181.7 million) as at
the close of the reporting year.

For the year ended 30 April 2015, the Group reported
a profit of approximately US$1.7 million (equivalent to
HK$13.3 million), a decrease of approximately 62.4%
when compared to approximately US$4.5 million
(equivalent to HK$35.1 million) last year. This was largely
attributable to the decline in turnover of the Group as
aforementioned and an additional tax provision for the
Hong Kong Tax Case, details of which are set out in the
paragraph under “"Hong Kong Tax Case".

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015

Segmental Analysis

Operating Segmentation

The Group's business comprises two operating segments:
(i) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, hardgoods, consumer electronic products
and labels; and (ii) provision of services including
procurement and value-added services relating to the
procurement agency business.

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

2015 2014

US$' million US$' million

Provision of services 158.1 175.8
Sales of merchandise 83.0 86.8
Total 241.1 262.6

Shipment value from the provision of services fell
by approximately 10.1% to approximately US$158.1
million (equivalent to HK$1,233.2 million), accounting
for roughly 65.6% of the Group's total shipment value.
This was mainly due to a decline in business from North
America.

Shipment value from sales of merchandise declined by
approximately 4.4% to approximately US$83.0 million
(equivalent to HK$647.4 million) as a result of the
weaker demand from certain customers in Europe. This
segment accounted for around 34.4% of the Group's total
shipment value.
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BHE T HAFNAZ1+THULEFEMNEBREDA
NE REBEMMEKLE> B (I RIES REHER
BIWNESEBEHEMTR BENEEHREZFH
262,600,000 3£ 7T (#8257 2,048,300,000 78 7T ) J8 4> 49 8.20%
ZRFE 49241,100,0003 7T (FH55 54 1,880,600,000/ 7T ) ©

KEE 2 WZE B X F 4103400000% T HEF R
806,500,000 7T ) T Bk 4 5.3% 2 ¥} &5 4 JE 497,900,000 3
7¢ (FBZ 7 763,600,000 56 7T ) °
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JC) B #97.300 F 7N F € #4925,000,000 % JT (18 F R
195,000,000 /& 7T ) ©
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From left to right:
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HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (General Counsel and Head of Development and Investments), ZHOU Xijian (Chairman), ZHANG Qi (Chief Executive Officer) and

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (President and Chief Financial Officer)
RELESR :

RER ZRBERBERRRETE) AR (EE)  RE (TEAAZ) RREF (BARYHHEE)

iy wacmongy el |
BE s aspERESN

r »

BABENSRE AR AT —T—RFFR

7



8

Management Discussion and Analysis
SRR eSS

Geographical Segmentation

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

2015 2014

US$' million US$' million

North America 121.2 131.8
Europe 58.8 69.3
Others 61.1 61.5
Total 241.1 262.6

During the year under review, shipments to North
America dropped by approximately 8.0% to approximately
US$121.2 million (equivalent to HK$945.4 million), as a
result of a change in procurement strategy by certain
customers. Nevertheless, North America remained the
largest market of the Group, contributing approximately
50.3% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipments to Europe decreased by approximately
15.2% to approximately US$58.8 million (equivalent to
HK$458.6 million). The contraction was due to a number
of factors, including the weak European economy, the
depreciation of the Euro against the US dollar and the
international sanctions on Russia that led to weaker
consumption sentiment, in turn, spurring the Group's
customers to implement a more conservative policy
towards replenishing inventory. As a result, shipments
to Europe accounted for approximately 24.4% of the
Group's total shipment value as at the end of the
reporting year.

Shipments grouped under "Others", comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere, remained
relatively stable. Shipments decreased slightly by
approximately 0.7% to approximately US$61.1 million
(equivalent to HK$476.6 million). "Others" represented
approximately 25.3% of the Group's total shipment value.

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Hong Kong Tax Case

As of the date of this annual report, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$137,000,000 (equivalent to US$17,564,000) from
the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong ("IRD")
in respect of queries on the modus operandi of the
Group and the chargeability of profits for the years of
assessment from 2003/2004 to 2008/2009. Objections
have been lodged by the Group against the protective
assessments. In addition, Tax Reserve Certificates
amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to US$673,000)
have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the Company
in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under
protective assessments for these years.

In April 2015, with the assistance of an independent
tax advisor, the Group submitted a settlement proposal
as part of negotiations with the IRD (not yet agreed) in
relation to this case and an additional tax provision in
the amount of HK$5,900,000 (equivalent to US$756,000)
was made in the financial statements for the year ended
30 April 2015. As at the close of the reporting year, the
settlement proposal is still under review by the IRD.
Despite the uncertainty about its outcome, the Group is
of the view that sufficient tax provisions have been made
in the financial statements based on the information
available.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRR eSS

Financial Review

The Group's financial position remains healthy with cash
and cash equivalents of approximately US$17.0 million
(equivalent to HK$132.6 million) as at 30 April 2015.
In addition, the Group has total banking facilities of
approximately US$20.8 million (equivalent to HK$162.2
million), including borrowing facilities of approximately
US$0.4 million (equivalent to HK$3.1 million) as at 30
April 2015.

The Group has a current ratio of approximately 1.4 and
a gearing ratio of zero, based on no interest-bearing
borrowings and total equity of approximately US$32.6
million (equivalent to HK$254.3 million) as at 30 April
2015. There has not been any material change in the
Group's borrowings since 30 April 2015.

Trade receivables decreased from approximately US$6.2
million (equivalent to HK$48.4 million) as at 30 April
2014 to approximately US$4.2 million (equivalent
to HK$32.8 million) as at 30 April 2015. Gross trade
receivables aged over 90 days, which amounted to
approximately US$0.3 million (equivalent to HK$2.3
million), are being carefully monitored by management.
Approximately US$0.1 million (equivalent to HK$0.8
million) of these balances were covered by the
impairment.

The Group's net asset value as at 30 April 2015 was
approximately US$32.6 million (equivalent to HK$254.3
million).

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 30
April 2015.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the
year under review were denominated in US dollars and
Hong Kong dollars. To minimise exchange risks, sales and
purchases are generally transacted in the same currency.

1 0 Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Remuneration Policy and Staff Development
Scheme

As at 30 April 2015, the Group had 382 staff members
(2014: 407 staff members). Total staff costs for the year
under review amounted to approximately US$15.7 million
(equivalent to HK$122.5 million) (2014: US$16.1 million
(equivalent to HK$125.6 million)). The Group offers
competitive remuneration schemes to its employees
based on industry practices, along with the individual and
the Group's performance. In addition, share options and
discretionary bonuses are also granted to eligible staff
members based on their individual performance and that
of the Group.

Update on the Creditors’ Voluntary Liquidation
of Linmark Electronics Limited ("LEL")
Reference is made to the disclosure on pages 10 to 11
of the Company's 2014 annual report for the year ended
30 April 2014 in relation to the creditors’ voluntary
liquidation of LEL ("Liquidation”).

Based on the company status shown on the website of
the Companies House of the UK, LEL was dissolved on 21
October 2014.

Save as disclosed in the previous interim and annual
reports of the Company, the Liquidation did not have
further material impact on the Group.

Change in Control and Unconditional Mandatory
Cash Offers

On 17 December 2014, Roly International Holdings Ltd.
("Roly International”), RGS Holdings Limited and Mr.
WANG Lu Yen ("Vendors") and Daohe Global Investment
Holding Limited ("Offeror") entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 11 January 2015), pursuant to which
the Vendors agreed to sell and the Offeror agreed to
purchase an aggregate of 477,655,619 shares of the
Company (“Sale Shares"), representing approximately
69.88% of the then entire issued share capital of the
Company, for a total consideration of HK$562,463,485
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.1776 per Sale Share).
Completion of the sale and purchase agreement took
place on 26 January 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRR eSS

Upon completion of the sale and purchase agreement,
the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it were
interested in 477,655,619 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 69.88% of the then entire
issued share capital of the Company.

During the period from 2 February 2015 to 23 February
2015, China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited made unconditional mandatory cash offers
on behalf of the Offeror for all the issued shares (other
than those shares already owned and/or agreed to be
acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert with
it) and for the cancellation of all outstanding options
held by the option holders in compliance with Rules
26.1 and 13.5 of the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers
and Share Buy-backs. Details of the unconditional
mandatory cash offers have been disclosed in the joint
announcements dated 12 January 2015, 26 January 2015,
2 February 2015, 11 February 2015 and 23 February 2015
and the composite offer and response document dated
2 February 2015 jointly issued by the Offeror and the
Company.

Prospects

The new financial year is expected to remain challenging
as the poor global business environment will likely
persist. Consequently, the Group will inevitably face a
number of obstacles that it was confronted with during
the past year.

While the US economy has been recovering modestly,
the upturn has not immediately translated into increased
demand for the Group's services. Based on the experience
of the Group's customers, the general public remains
highly price conscious, which in turn will mean the
Group's customers will continue to follow a more
cautious approach towards placing orders.

In Europe, the economies that make up the euro zone
have experienced lackluster growth, and there remain
concerns that the prolonged slowdown could possibly
trigger a recession. Concerns of a recession also exist in
Russia. Previously among the fastest growing markets in
the world, the country is now on the brink of a recession
due to international sanctions.

1 2 Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015

The economic stagnation of the aforementioned regions
and other markets has directly been reflected in the
devaluation of most major currencies against the US
dollar, including the Euro, Australian dollar and South
African Rand. As a result, this will place mounting price
pressure on the Group's imported products.

In the face of the many uncertainties mentioned, the
Group will continue to strengthen ties with its key
customers in efforts to stimulate organic growth. At
the same time, it will seek to establish ties with new
customers so as to widen its client base, as well as
investigate new business opportunities.

With respect to the Group's product portfolio, management
will closely examine the product mix and seek to expand
product offerings. Furthermore, the Group will look to
deepen its sourcing base in order to address customers'
needs, as well as reduce its own exposure to cost and
currency related pressures.

Management will continue to closely monitor and
implement effective cost control measures so as to
bolster efficiency and reign in expenses.

Following the placement of the Company's shares in
June 2015, the financial position of the Group has
been further strengthened and the capital base has
been broadened. The Group is now in a better position
for development opportunities as and when they
arise. Management will keep on looking for merger
and acquisition opportunities that allow the Group to
effectively expand its scope of businesses, services and
product offerings.

“Linmark" is an established and trusted brand with a 50-
year history. The Group expects to develop the existing
business under the “Linmark" brand, as part of its
portfolio of holdings. At the same time, the Company's
new name, "Daohe Global", reflects the ambitions of the
Group to grow and to pursue new opportunities as they
arise.

Despite short term challenges, management remains
optimistic about the Group's long-term development.



REEHETHE  EHARBE-—RTHALHEER
477,655,619 WA LD G D - (EANARERE EITIRAE
2B 469.88% °

R E-—AE-_A-HE-_ET—AE_A=-+=HHH
M PRRTRBRES (BB ERARIRRENARE
NEEE - AR ERETRIZER 2611 X 135520
BETERD(BHOARBE-—BITHALIEHRER K
RER TWENZERDERIN R EERERE A
BEWNFARRITEBRERDEEFARFIRSELD -
ERMFATIRSZENNFRBRERENABEKRF N A E
B-E—R&—A+-8 - —_FE—AFE—H—-+,x8 "
—E2—RAF-_AZH -ZE—RAFZA+—ABAEKZ=ZZF
—HEF A+t =HHBEAMANRZE—RF A=
HEA FIBMGE ZHO RO E XN -

Al

BHRERAEREB G ERERS - T RFED
HEFEMBREL o Bt - ANER B RS A Al 4@ S0 1t [ e 25 4R P
RS T HERE -

BEXBEHECBRER  BRELENFEIW AR A
MAEEBEHAREMRHAORBOFTR - BAKE
BEFNZR  ARMDARKEEENERER &8
IREREE T PR LT BRI EREE RN
St

FEEUN - BUTER &R E | ERIE RFRMAMR - BNA
BERBINZ  FENPRGAEEHAELERR - &
2o RERNEFESERERNER - I ZH - %
BrQEERERE QAR E - AR ERGIEE
HIERNEETRAERE

biispla R EMATHISENEETSREERRRNAZE
I2ERAERBET ENRE  BEBUT BT
B BT ZRENAKEEENERER
JTEHES

N LFELIEERE  AREFEENRETRE
FOEBE  URIBARIER - EItRE - NEB TR
NABEREPRBEREFER - WRRRRHHEE -

RAKENEREANS EEESTHE=ERES
RFERIERERMBRE - 1o REBIESRRCEEK
BER  UWEARRAEPHRNRARROH B S HERK
AR EEERBENES

EREEREET SRR BEEBRNAIESEE - AR
BRERNAERCRX

B-T-AFANAREARFRMNEK - AEBEHF R
MEFRE—FIER  ARGEENERSIE-TE
FR o AEEREE MiF oo EFDE AR EBRNER
E - BEEESEEMESASBEEMEBRELEL - Rk
BRERTEEENRO R WEKS -

[ME | EB0FN TN BERE AR A —EEREENR
hE - REB IS RRIGKME RAEXBESNEER
BEBREEEN —HOEBERRE - BERR - ARQF
FramlEMRK LR T ARERRNED - FFD
RAKEENTHHE A

BERAEEKE - BEEREUASENREERD
RIRFTREE -

BEMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH

13



Biographical Details of Directors,
Senior Management and Company Secretary

% ﬁ/\

ZHOU Xijian
A% &

ZHANG Qi
RE

BEE N A RIS B

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, aged 40, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company and the chairman of the
Board with effect from 5 February 2015. Mr. Zhou has over
20 years of business experience. Mr. Zhou is the president
of BREMZEEZESEEFMRAT (Guangdong Daohe
Investment Group LLC*) (* Guangdong Daohe"). Guangdong
Daohe is a multi-industry company which is engaged in
a wide range of businesses including but not limited to
liquor, drinking water, film and television, catering and
Internet technology. Mr. Zhou obtained a master's degree
in business administration from the Business School of
Nanjing Normal University in 2011.

Executive Directors and senior management

Mr. ZHANG Qi, aged 40, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and the chief executive officer
of the Group with effect from 5 February 2015. Mr. Zhang
has over 16 years of business experience, and is currently
the global executive president of FIRFIKEHEZERES
FfR72 &) (Nanjing Joymain Sci & Tech Development Co.,
Ltd.¥) ("Nanjing Joymain"). Nanjing Joymain is principally
engaged in the research and development, production, sale
and service of healthcare products. Mr. Zhang obtained
a master's degree in business administration from the
Business School of Nanjing Normal University in 2011.

*

For identification purpose only
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WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
BEF

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil
BERE

Executive Directors and senior management

(continued)

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 45, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company with effect from
1 September 2010. Mr. Wong has been the president of
the Group since 5 February 2015 and the chief financial
officer of the Group since 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Wong
was the head of corporate development department of a
Greater China based supply chain management solutions
provider and consumer products distributor, primarily
responsible for business development, mergers and
acquisitions and investor relations activities. Previously, Mr.
Wong had worked at several major international financial
institutions where he gained extensive experience in
finance, investments and banking. Mr. Wong holds a Master
of Business Administration degree in finance from Boston
University in the US, and a Bachelor of Science degree from
The University of British Columbia in Canada.

Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil, aged 43, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company and general
counsel and head of development and investments of the
Group with effect from 5 February 2015. Mr. Hwang is
an independent director of First Sponsor Group Limited,
a company listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and a partner of Zhong
Lun Law Firm. Mr. Hwang was admitted as an advocate
and solicitor in Singapore in 1998, as a solicitor in England
and Wales in 2000 and as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2004.
He was previously the founder and managing partner of
a US law firm's Hong Kong office. Mr. Hwang has over
16 years' experience in advising on financial regulatory
matters, corporate finance and mergers and acquisitions
transactions. Mr. Hwang has a LL.B. (Honours) degree from
the National University of Singapore, and a Master of
Science degree in Global Finance jointly granted by New
York University's Stern School of Business and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. He holds a
solicitor's practising certificate with the Law Society of
Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors,

Senior Management and Company Secretary
EF  aAERERAFMEER

| .

WANG Arthur Minshiang
B ¢ed

3

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
BEDT

Lo

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 54, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2002. Mr. Wang is the chief executive officer of 698 Capital
Limited, a private Asian investment firm. Mr. Wang is also
a board and audit committee member of NASDAQ listed
Homeinns Hotel Group, one of China's leading hotel chains.
Previously, Mr. Wang was a member of the board and chief
executive officer of GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ listed
online entertainment and game provider. Mr. Wang was
also previously a co-founder and executive director of KGI
Asia Limited, an investment bank and securities brokerage.
Mr. Wang has also served on the board of directors of
several finance and technology companies in the region and
was previously a member of the board and audit committee
chair of Softbank Investment International (Strategic)
Limited (now known as China Renji Medical Group Limited),
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Wang received his Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law
School and practised corporate and securities law in Hong
Kong and New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of California at Los Angeles in the US.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 67, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2005. Mr. Tse is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Mr.
Tse is a past president and the past chairman and a past
member of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA. He joined
KPMG in 1976, became a partner in 1984 and retired
in March 2003. Mr. Tse was a non-executive chairman
of KPMG's operations in the PRC and a member of the
KPMG China advisory board from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Tse is
currently an independent non-executive director of CNOOC
Limited, China Telecom Corporation Limited, Sinofert
Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited, all listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In March 2013,
Mr. Tse was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of China Construction Bank Corporation,
which shares are also listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. In November 2014, Mr. Tse was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of China Huarong
Asset Management Co., Ltd. From 2004 to 2014, Mr. Tse
was an independent non-executive director of Wing Hang
Bank, Limited, which shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange until 2014. Mr. Tse is a member of
the International Advisory Council of the People's Municipal
Government of Wuhan. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Social
Sciences degree from The University of Hong Kong.
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Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS

Independent non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, aged 68, has been
an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 2008. He became the chief executive officer of
Freemans Grattan Holdings of Otto Group in 2008. After
a successful 4 years, he retired at the end of 2012 and
remains a non-executive director of Freemans PLC and
Grattan PLC. From 1994 to 2007, he was managing director
of Otto International Asia and was responsible for all of
its sourcing offices and trading companies in the Asia
Pacific region. Prior to that, he worked his way through
different aspects of the garment industry for 22 years
in South Africa. Having been managing director for the
manufacturing subsidiary of a major retailer in South Africa
and a board member of such retailer for 4 years, he joined
a large American apparel manufacturer in Hong Kong in
1992. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Garment Engineering
received from a college in Netherlands.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 47, has been the
company secretary of the Company since its initial public
offering in 2002. Ms. Cheung was the head of the company
secretarial department of Roly International from 1997
to January 2015. She became an employee of the Group
in February 2015. She has over 20 years of company
secretarial experience gained in listed companies. Ms.
Cheung holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, the United Kingdom.
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Corporate Governance Report

NREVARE

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions ("Code Provisions")
as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as the Corporate Governance Code
(“Code") of the Company. The Board is committed to complying with
the Code to the extent that the Directors consider it is applicable to the
Company and practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise an effective
Board, sound internal controls, appropriate independence policy, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code, save for the deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1 for the period from 1 May 2014 to 4 February 2015.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
and the explanations on the deviation from the Code Provision are
summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full
and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board, the
powers and authorities reserved to the full Board include the following
but are not limited to:

1. matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a Director;

2. making decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend or pay
dividend;

3. approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement of the
profits or losses in respect of annual results or interim results and
(i) the related financial statements and/or accounts;
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4. approving any proposed change in the capital structure, including
any redemption of its securities listed on the Stock Exchange;

5. approving any decision to change the general nature of the
business of the Company;

6. approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction, very
substantial acquisition and disposal or connected transaction
within the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules;

7. matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require
approval at a full Board meeting; and

8. any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be imposed
upon the committees by the Board from time to time.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are more particularly discussed
below.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities. Save for the power reserved
by the Board or other Board committees, the Executive Committee
currently comprising all of the executive Directors is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation functions of the Group.

Corporate governance functions

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board, the
Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees:

1. to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
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NEIERWE

5. to review the Group's compliance with the corporate governance
code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company; and

6. to review and monitor the Group's process of disclosure, including
assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of inside
information and determine the form and content of any required
disclosure.

During the year under review, the Board handled the disclosure of inside
information in accordance with its internal policy on disclosure of inside
information and continuous disclosure policy and materiality guidelines.

Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for directors' and officers' liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the Company and
its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged by the Company.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises seven Directors in total, with one non-
executive Director, three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were as follows:
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Name of Directors Positions

EENR Bz

ZHOU Xijian Chairman and non-executive Director (appointed with effect from 5 February 2015)
EER TRERINTEEN_ZE—RAF_ATEEEZT)

ZHANG Qi Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (appointed with effect from 5 February 2015)
SRE WITESHFTRER(N—_E—hE_AAREET)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
BEF
HITESRVSAE

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
President (appointed with effect from 5 February 2015)

#BHE (M _ZT-RAF_AAREZRE)

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil

=ERE effect from 5 February 2015)

Executive Director, General Counsel and Head of Development and Investments (appointed with

WITES ERREERZERERETE(R T HF _AABEZE)

WANG Arthur Minshiang
T

Independent non-executive Director

BIUFBITES
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Name of Directors Positions

EENE B 7
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Independent non-executive Director
HEDT BUIHITES
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Independent non-executive Director
BUIFHITES
WANG Lu Yen Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (resigned with effect from 5 February 2015)
F1%E Executive Director (resigned with effect from 23 February 2015)

Honorary Chairman (non-executive and not a member of the Board, appointed on 23 February 2015)
EFREFRTHER (R —hF AR BEHT)
WITEE(RZE—RAF-_A=-+=HFT)

KEIFEOERTRIFETENE  RZE—AF A T=HEZMT)

WONG Wai Ming Non-executive Director (resigned with effect from 23 February 2015)
LS FRTEF (N _T—RAF_A-+=A8T)

The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below ARARRERANAEEZES - TRIEHKE
provides membership information of these committees on which each EeREAEZEZT S TIETHEA o
Board member serves.

Board Committee

Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Director ESZ8g Committee Committee Committee Committee
BE=E BITEEE BREEE FMZEETS RE|ZE]
ZHOU Xijian EEE C
ZHANG Qi R C M
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EHREF M
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil =ERE M
WANG Arthur Minshiang e :iecs M C M
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HELT C M M
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS M
Notes: BoaE -
C Chairman of the relevant Board committees o EHEEZEENER
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEEZEENKE

Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr. ZHANG Qi are business partners and are JAHFBEER KRB LLEABEBABARLL A
directors and shareholders of Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited (& F13REk
("Daohe Global Investment"), a controlling shareholder of the Company. &AL AT]) ([BMBIRIRE |) (KA 7%
Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil is a partner of Zhong Lun Law Firm which ~ BRIRE)MESZNKRE - B/ERELE AP mERD
is the legal adviser to Daohe Global Investment. Save as disclosed above,  FEFEPT (BRIRFKIEE A A RER) B ZA - B
none of the members of the Board has any relationship (including LA F#EEESN - EE S S WK 2 & (E (A7
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) with R (BT - 2715 RESKHMEKX 1HEH
each other. &) o
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against appropriate
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

According to the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board on 30
August 2013, selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge, industry and
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender,
age and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will be able to bring to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee is delegated to review this policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness to suit the needs of the Company
and will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed (i)
the appointments of new Directors and president; and (ii) the structure,
size and composition of the Board and was of the opinion that the Board
is well balanced and diversified, and with the appropriate structure, size
and necessary skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives
required for the business of the Group.

The Board's composition and the biographical details of the Directors are
set out in the paragraph headed "Composition" above and in the section
"Biographical Details of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” of this annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company still considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors who have served for
more than nine years

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang and Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius have served as
independent non-executive Directors for more than nine years. To comply
with Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang
and Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius retired voluntarily and were re-elected as
Directors at the 2012 and 2014 annual general meetings of the Company
held on 27 August 2012 and 28 August 2014 respectively.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
The Board is responsible for approving any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

The Company's bye-laws (“Bye-laws") provide that all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Bye-laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

During the year under review, the Board approved the changes to the
Board and to the composition of the committees of the Board at a
meeting or by passing written resolutions based on the recommendations
of the Nomination Committee and in accordance with the intention of
Daohe Global Investment as stated in the composite offer and response
document dated 2 February 2015 jointly issued by Daohe Global
Investment as the Offeror and the Company.

During the year under review, the Board recommended the re-
appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the general
meetings of the Company.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2015, the
three new Directors who were appointed on 5 February 2015 retired and
were re-elected as Directors.
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At the forthcoming annual general meeting, three other Directors will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Company's
circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company on or about 28
July 2015 will contain detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election.

Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointment
Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-executive Director, has been appointed for a term
of three years under a letter of appointment from February 2015 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party by serving not less
than six months' notice in writing.

Each of Mr. ZHANG Qi, Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis and Mr. HWANG
Han-Lung, Basil, being an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company with an initial term of three years from
February 2015, September 2010 and February 2015 respectively, and
will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the
other not less than six months' notice in writing.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. Jakob
Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, has first been appointed for a term of two
years under a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years upon expiry. The appointments may be terminated by
the independent non-executive Directors by serving not less than one
month's notice in writing.

Disclosure of information on Directors

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
in addition to the emolument and the directorships held in the last three
years in public companies as disclosed in other parts of this annual
report, the changes in the information of the Directors since the date
of the annual report for the year ended 30 April 2014 of the Company
which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules are summarised below:

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis was appointed president of the Group with
effect from 5 February 2015.

Mr. WANG Lu Yen resigned as chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer of the Group, chairman of the Executive Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Remuneration Committee with
effect from 5 February 2015, and resigned as an executive Director with
effect from 23 February 2015. He was appointed honorary chairman
(non-executive and not a member of the Board) with effect from 23
February 2015.

Mr. WONG Wai Ming resigned as non-executive Director with effect from
23 February 2015.
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Change to the emolument of a Director

For the year under review, the Remuneration Committee having
considered the roles and responsibilities, performance and contributions
of the Directors approved the following change to the emolument of an
executive Director. None of the Directors participated in the discussions
relating to his own remuneration matters.

Since the last published annual report, the change made to the
emolument of a Director is summarised below:

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (executive Director, president, chief financial
officer, and member of Executive Committee)

- With effect from 1 February 2015, the base salary under the service
agreement has been adjusted from HK$3,487,200 (or US$448,226)
to HK$4,344,470 (or US$558,415) per annum.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors at the Company's expenses
whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and
developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group conducts its business to the
Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on directors' training. All Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. They provided a record of training they
received during the year ended 30 April 2015 to the Company. Except
for Mr. ZHOU Xijian, Mr. ZHANG Qi and Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil
appointed with effect from 5 February 2015 who received two hours of
training upon their appointment, each other Director received at least
eight hours of training in the form of attending seminars, receiving
online training or self-study of the publications issued by the regulators,
professional bodies and corporate lawyers during the year ended 30 April
2015.
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Directors' attendance and time commitment

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies, policies and budgets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2015, the Board met seven times mainly
for considering and approving the audited final results for the year
ended 30 April 2014, unaudited results for the three months ended 31
July 2014, unaudited interim results for the six months ended 31 October
2014, possible unconditional mandatory cash offers, unaudited results
for the nine months ended 31 January 2015, budget of the Group for
the year ending 30 April 2016 and renewal of the term of the letter of
appointment of an independent non-executive Director. At these board
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's business
updates and strategies.

An independent board committee was formed on 7 January 2015
pursuant to the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
in connection with the possible unconditional mandatory cash offers.
During the year under review, the independent board committee held
two meetings to appoint independent financial adviser and approve the
issue of a letter from the independent board committee which forms
part of the composite offer and response document dated 2 February
2015 jointly issued by Daohe Global Investment as the Offeror and the
Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, annual general meeting and independent
board committee meetings during the year ended 30 April 2015 is set out
below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEE/ERNE
Independent
Executive Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual Board
Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee general  Committee
Name of Directors BEig Meeting Meeting Megting Meeting Meeting meeting Meeting
EZ® YTREE ENZEE FHZEE REZEE RREF BuEEs
g8 88 €% #% & K8 ZE%eH
Non-executive Director FHTESE
ZHOU Xijian (Note 1) A%t () o NATMEER  NATER  NATER N NATER  NATER
Executive Directors HITES
ZHANG Qi (Note 2) & (Wit 2) 1 oo NATER NATER M NATER  NATNER
WWONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Note 3) BEE (M) 1l 00 Wil 1 )1 1 i)
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (Note 4) ~ EE 5 (Mi7E4) i 00 NATER  NATER M NATNER  NATER
WANG Lu Yen (Note 5) IRE (W) /6 0/0 wl) 1N NATER i "2
Independent non-executive Directors B EHTES
WANG Arthur Minshiang o M NATER 02 11 il on 202
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEN M NATER 202 11 i i 0
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakab Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 7 NATER 0 NATER  NATER 11 22
Non-executive Director FHTES
IONG Wai Ming (Note 6) ER8 (Mite) i6  NATER NATER  NATER  NATER 01 20
Nurmber of meetings held SENBTRY 7 0 2 1 1 1 2
Notes: B3

Mr. ZHOU Xijian was appointed non-executive Director and chairman of the Group
with effect from 5 February 2015. He was also appointed member and chairman of
Nomination Committee with effect from 22 April 2015.

Mr. ZHANG Qi was appointed executive Director, chief executive officer of the Group,
chairman of Executive Committee and member of Remuneration Committee with
effect from 5 February 2015.

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, the executive Director and chief financial officer of the
Group, was appointed president of the Group with effect from 5 February 2015.

Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil was appointed executive Director, general counsel
and head of development and investments of the Group and member of Executive
Committee with effect from 5 February 2015.

Mr. WANG Lu Yen resigned as chairman of the Board, chief executive officer of the
Group, chairman of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee and member
of Remuneration Committee with effect from 5 February 2015, and resigned as executive
Director with effect from 23 February 2015. He was appointed honorary chairman (non-
executive and not a member of the Board) with effect from 23 February 2015.

Mr. WONG Wai Ming resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 23 February
2015.

The Directors are not members of the committees at the relevant time but attended
the meetings by invitation.
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Apart from holding physical meetings, the Board and Board committees
also circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of
the Board and Board committees except for matters where a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which the Board has
determined to be material in compliance with Code Provision A.1.7 of the
CG Code.

The Board having considered the attendance records and training
records of the Directors and the confirmation provided by each Director
is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient time performing his
responsibilities.

Practices and conduct of meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made available
to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to senior management and
company secretary whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer (who heads a team
of professional staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function) and company secretary of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.
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The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors for their
comments and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after each meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

Chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, the then chairman of the Board, was also the chief
executive officer of the Group for the period from 1 May 2014 to 5
February 2015. It was a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Given Mr. Wang's experience and business knowledge, the Board believed
that the Group benefited from a unified chairman and chief executive
officer position that provided clarity of leadership and allowed efficient
decision-making in strategic matters as well as the Group's day-to-day
business.

Following the resignation of Mr. WANG Lu Yen as chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Group with effect from 5 February
2015, the two positions have been held by Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr.
ZHANG Qi respectively. Since then, the role of the chairman has been
separate from that of the chief executive officer and there has not been
any deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
clearly defined and set out in writing, details of which are stated below.

The chairman's principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on
corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the Board
and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the Board's
affairs.

Supported by the other executive Directors and management, the chief
executive officer's principal role is to manage and operate the Group's
day-to-day business, including the implementation of major strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board.
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Board committees

The Company currently has four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

Current structure of the Board

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive Directors as
follows:

ZHANG Qi (chairman of the committee) (appointed member and chairman
of the committee with effect from 5 February 2015)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (appointed member of the committee with
effect from 5 February 2015)

WANG Lu Yen (ceased to act as member and chairman of the committee
with effect from 5 February 2015)
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The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and operation
functions of the Group to the Executive Committee save to the extent
that certain powers and authorities are reserved to the full Board or the
other Board committees. The Executive Committee is also responsible for
reviewing or recommending to the Board the investment transactions
of the Group and has the power to approve transactions that would not
constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules,
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules or capital
market activities.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors
as follows:

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results announcements
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Directors. The Audit
Committee also reviews and monitors the external auditors' independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process. The members
meet regularly with the external auditors and the Company's senior
management for the review and supervision of the Company's financial
reporting and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for monitoring integrity of the financial statements
of the Company and the Company's annual reports and accounts and
interim reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the CG Code, details of
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control and other matters have been included
in the employees' handbook since 1 April 2012.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings to:

(a) review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the chief financial officer
(who heads a team of professional staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function) or external auditors
before submission to the Board;
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(b)  review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees, terms of
engagement and independence, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors proposed by management; and

(c)  review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Company which took place during the year under review.

The Company's interim results for the six months ended 31 October 2014
and annual results for the year ended 30 April 2015 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external
auditors on its independence and objectivity as required by the HKICPA.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors during the
year under review.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

ZHANG Qi (appointed member of the committee with effect from 5
February 2015)

WANG Lu Yen (ceased to act as member of the committee with effect
from 5 February 2015)

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company's policy
and structure for all the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the chairman and/or the chief executive officer of the Company about
their recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.
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The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two models
suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a whole is responsible
for determining the remuneration of non-executive Directors whereas the
Remuneration Committee has the authority to approve the remuneration
of the individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries as well as share options related matters.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to determine the remuneration and bonus of the executive
Directors by reference to the roles and responsibilities, performance
and contributions of the Directors. It also passed written resolutions
in determining and approving the remuneration of new executive
Directors and a member of senior management, and the change of
the remuneration of an existing executive Director based on the
qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities to be undertaken and
prevailing market conditions; reviewed the terms of the service contracts
of the new executive Directors; and recommended the director's fee of a
new non-executive Director.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

ZHOU Xijian (chairman of the committee) (appointed member and
chairman of the committee with effect from 22 April 2015)

WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

WANG Lu Yen (ceased to act as member and chairman of the committee
with effect from 5 February 2015)

ZHANG Qi (appointed member and chairman of the committee with effect
from 5 February 2015 and ceased to act as member and chairman of
the committee with effect from 22 April 2015)

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@)  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate
strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship;
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(c)  assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors,
having regard to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

(e) ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company's business, and in that regard, the
Nomination Committee should assist the Board to formulate and
review a policy concerning diversity of Board members.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee passed written
resolutions in recommending the appointment of new Directors per the
intention of Daohe Global Investment; and held one meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board by reference to the
Board Diversity Policy, to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, to consider the renewal of the letter of appointment
of an independent non-executive Director.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda has been the company secretary since the
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2002.
She became an employee of the Company with effect from 1 February
2015.

The company secretary supports the Board by ensuring an unimpeded
flow of information within the Board and that policies and procedures
formulated by the Board are followed. She is responsible for advising
the Board through the chairman, chief executive officer and the general
counsel on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional
development of the Directors.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject
to the Board's approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the
company secretary reports to the chief executive officer and the general
counsel on the Group's company secretarial and corporate governance
matters, all members of the Board have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary.

Ms. Cheung confirmed that she has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules and received more than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 30 April 2015.
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Business objectives and strategies

The Company looks for improving the Group's long term financial
performance and avoids taking undue risks to make short term gains
at the expense of long term objectives. The current business strategy is
disclosed in the section "Prospects” of the "Management Discussion and
Analysis" of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal controls
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the year ended
30 April 2015, the Board conducted an annual review of the Group's
internal control system, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee and external auditors. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, budget, training programmes,
qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function.

As delegated by the Board and Audit Committee, executive management
reviewed the design and implementation of systems of internal controls
based on annual assessment of the Group's risk profile. Key control
issues and recommendations were reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Management will continue to follow up actions agreed upon in response
to recommendations.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code ("Employees Written Guidelines") for
securities transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company
and its securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines by
the relevant employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 30 April 2015.
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Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other publications and disclosures
of the Company required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2015.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors' Report" contained in this annual report.

Auditors’' remuneration

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 April 2015
amounted to approximately US$309,000 and US$107,000 respectively.
The non-audit services were mainly related to tax services.

Shareholders’ rights
The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
members (or shareholders) of the Company ("shareholders”) are set out
in, amongst other things, the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda ("Companies Act").

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or
at the registered office of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies
Act. Under bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company as set out in the "Corporate Information” section of this annual
report for the attention of the company secretary.
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Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a
resolution relating to matters in a general meeting by following the
requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the
Companies Act, on the written requisition of members representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the
expense of the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
the Company shall give shareholders notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a
relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws, shareholders are entitled to elect
any person to be a Director at the annual general meeting in accordance
with bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws or at any special general meeting by
following the requirement set out in bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws. Details
of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available
on the Company's website.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the Company will
arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be
sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors. Where
bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company shall explain
the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll
The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put
to vote at general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands.

Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent
to shareholders prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall
ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any questions from shareholders on voting

by poll.
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After each general meeting, the poll results will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ communication policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings
to communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
Company shall also make available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to
suit the needs of the Company and to comply with the relevant rules and
corporate governance code.

Conduct of general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend the meetings.

The chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Board committees
or in their absence, other members of the respective committees and the
external auditors are available to answer questions at the annual general
meetings.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about shareholdings, share
transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company. Other shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the head office and principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the Corporate Information section
of this annual report for the attention of the chief financial officer and
the company secretary.

Details of the shareholders' rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company's website.

Investor relations

Designated senior management is responsible for communicating and
enhancing relationships with the investors of the Company. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in a timely manner.
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As to promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website, where information and updates on the Company's business
developments and operations, list of directors and their role and function,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its
committees, procedures of nomination of directors for election, Board
Diversity Policy, shareholders' rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports released to
the Stock Exchange and other information are posted. Information on the
Company's website is updated from time to time.

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during
the year ended 30 April 2015.

Hong Kong, 14 July 2015
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2015.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year under review by
business and geographical segments as well as information about major
customers is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 58.

An interim dividend of 0.96 HK cent per ordinary share (before Share
Subdivision (as defined in Note 36 to the financial statements)) or
0.192 HK cent per ordinary share (after Share Subdivision), totalling
approximately US$843,000, was declared and paid to shareholders during
the year under review.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.25 HK
cent per ordinary share (before Share Subdivision) or 0.05 HK cent per
ordinary share (after Share Subdivision) in respect of the year ended 30
April 2015, totalling approximately US$226,000. Subject to shareholders'
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the final dividend
will be paid in cash on or about 11 September 2015 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 4
September 2015.

Ultimate holding company

During the year under review, Roly International, RGS Holdings Limited
and Mr. WANG Lu Yen, who was an executive Director during the
period from 1 May 2014 to 23 February 2015, disposed of an aggregate
of 477,655,619 shares of the Company, representing approximately
69.88% of the then issued share capital of the Company to Daohe
Global Investment pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 17
December 2014 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 11
January 2015). The 477,655,619 shares together with valid acceptances in
respect of a total of 92,000 shares of the Company under the Share Offer
(details of which are set out in the paragraph headed "Change in control
and unconditional mandatory cash offers” below) were held under
four wholly-owned subsidiaries of Daohe Global Investment, namely
Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited,
Oceanic Force Limited and Winning Port International Limited. The
Directors regard Daohe Global Investment and Sino Remittance Holding
Limited as the controlling shareholders of the Company and Daohe
Global Investment as the ultimate holding company of the Company.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-
executive Director.
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Ultimate holding company (continued)

As at 30 April 2015, Daohe Global Investment through its four wholly-
owned subsidiaries indirectly held an aggregate of approximately 69.77%
of the then issued share capital of the Company.

Change in control and unconditional mandatory cash
offers

On 17 December 2014, Roly International, RGS Holdings Limited and
Mr. WANG Lu Yen (“Vendors") and Daohe Global Investment ("Offeror")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 11 January 2015), pursuant to which the
Vendors agreed to sell and the Offeror agreed to purchase an aggregate
of 477,655,619 shares of the Company ("Sale Shares"), representing
approximately 69.88% of the then entire issued share capital of the
Company, for a total consideration of HK$562,463,485 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.1776 per Sale Share). Completion of the sale and
purchase agreement took place on 26 January 2015.

Upon completion of the sale and purchase agreement, the Offeror and
parties acting in concert with it were interested in 477,655,619 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 69.88% of the then entire
issued share capital of the Company and options held by Mr. WANG
Lu Yen to subscribe for up to 500,000 shares of the Company were
surrendered and cancelled. During the period from 2 February 2015 to
23 February 2015, China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited made unconditional mandatory cash offers on behalf of the
Offeror for all the issued shares (other than those shares already owned
and/or agreed to be acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert
with it) (“Share Offer") and for the cancellation of all outstanding
options held by option holders ("Option Offer") in compliance with Rules
26.1 and 13.5 of the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs.

As at the close of the unconditional mandatory cash offers on 23
February 2015, the Offeror had received valid acceptances in respect
of a total of 92,000 shares of the Company under the Share Offer
(representing approximately 0.01% of the then entire issued share capital
of the Company) and valid acceptances in respect of 1,222,500 Options
under the Option Offer (representing approximately 51.83% of the total
of 2,358,500 Options subject to the Option Offer).

Details of the unconditional mandatory cash offers have been disclosed
in the joint announcements dated 12 January 2015, 26 January 2015,
2 February 2015, 11 February 2015 and 23 February 2015 and the
composite offer and response document dated 2 February 2015 jointly
issued by the Offeror and the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EFxeRsE

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year under review are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year under review
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Reserves and distributable reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year under review are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 30 April 2015, distributable reserves of the Company consisted
of the aggregate of contributed surplus and retained earnings, which
amounted to US$11,482,000 (2014: US$12,882,000).

Bye-law 138 of the Bye-laws requires that no dividend shall be paid
or distribution be made out of contributed surplus if to do so would
render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or
the realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

In accordance with Section 54 of the Companies Act, the Company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of its
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.
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Share options and share option schemes

A share option scheme ("2002 Share Option Scheme") was adopted
by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The Company terminated the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (“2011 Share
Option Scheme") pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to
2021, during which the Board or a committee thereof may grant options
to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the Company. No option has
been granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.

Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the 2011 Share Option Scheme include:

(i) any Director or proposed Director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
Director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or any individual for the time being
seconded to work for, any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company; or

(iii)  any business partner, agent, consultant or representative of,
or any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to, or any supplier of goods or
services to, or any customer of, any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company.

2. Maximum number of shares

The initial total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
approval of the 2011 Share Option Scheme (i.e. 68,306,927 shares,
representing approximately 9.98% of the Company's issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report). As of 30 April 2015, no
option has been granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)

2.

44

Maximum number of shares (continued)

Subject to the approval by the Company's shareholders, the
aggregate number of the Company's shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
Company's shares in issue from time to time. Options granted to the
independent non-executive Directors or substantial shareholders of
the Company or any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1%
of the Company's shares in issue and with an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million resulting in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be
granted to such person under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant of such option must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to any eligible
persons (including those cancelled, exercised and outstanding
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Company's shares in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of such limit must be separately approved
by the Company's shareholders in general meeting.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. No
consideration is required to be paid by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option.
Options may be exercised at any time commencing on the date as
the Board may determine and ending on such date as the Board
may determine but shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the grant
of the option is accepted). The exercise price is determined by the
Board, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of
the Company's shares on the date of offer of grant and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of grant.

Remaining life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
Subject to the earlier termination of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules governing the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the 2011 Share Option Scheme will expire on 29
August 2021.
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)

Movements of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company
granted to the Directors and employees (Note ii) under the 2002 Share

Option Scheme during the year under review were as follows:
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Options granted by the Company

Number of underlying shares of the Company

KRREZ BRER L ALARAMA

Qutstanding Qutstanding Exercise
asat asat price
1 May 2014 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2015 per share Date of grant Exercise period
(4|
H-%-mE W-g-1%
1R-R BA=tH
HRAT BRL gfif it BX%  HATE SROGE RLRH iR
(#1)
Directors or former Directors EZonfEs
WANG Arthur Minstiang (Notei) T4 (M) 312500 - [312500) 5 - 0700 20082009 25/08/2010-2408/2015
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert 312500 = (312,500) = = 0700 25/08[2009 25/08[2010-24/08/2015
TULLENERS (Note ] TULLENERS (Ff3Eiv)
VAN Lu Yen (Note ) TREMRY 500000 - [s00000) 2 2 0700 250082000 25(082010-24/08[2015
IVONG Wai Ming (Notes v & v BB (i i) 500000 - [s00000) 5 2 0700 2/08[2009  25/08/2010-2408/2015
Continuous contract employees ~ BEAKES 1408500 - (1138000 7500 (175000) - 0700 2082009 25{08/2010-2408/2015
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Share options and share option schemes (continued) BRENBRESTE @

Notes: BiE

(i) The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily (i REBEWATEBRERL B8 BYHIMEHh2E

quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the outstanding options were
granted were as follows:

BT EXRAR - ARRRGZKHENT

Trading day immediately

Closing price per share immediately

Date of grant before the date of grant before the date of grant
RHBAH EERHBAYNZXSA EERHBAYNZERETE
HK$
7T
25/08/2009 24/08/2009 0.670

As of 30 April 2015, there were no outstanding options under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme as all options were either exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

(ii) Employees include employees of the Group and its then fellow subsidiaries (other than
the Directors) working under employment contracts with the Group or its then fellow
subsidiaries which are regarded as "continuous contracts" for the purpose of the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong Kong).

(iii) The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair value of
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The Black-Scholes Model is
one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option which can
be exercised before the expiry of the option period. The assumptions used in the
calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate - the yield of 4-year Exchange Fund Notes on the date
of grant
(b) Expected volatility of share price - annualised volatility for one year

immediately preceding the date of grant
(c) Expected life of share options - 3.5-4.5 years
(d) Expected dividend paid out rate - 40%

No option was granted during the year under review/during the corresponding period
last year.

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model is based on
various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that the financial benefit
accruing to the option holders may be substantially different from the value of
options calculated.

(iv) Options were cancelled pursuant to the acceptance of Option Offer (details are set out
in the paragraph headed "Change in control and unconditional mandatory cash offers”
above) by the respective option holders.

(v) Options held by Mr. WANG Lu Yen were surrendered and cancelled upon completion
of the sale and purchase agreement dated 17 December 2014 (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 11 January 2015). Mr. WANG Lu Yen resigned as an
executive Director with effect from 23 February 2015.

(vi) Mr. WONG Wai Ming resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 23
February 2015.
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Directors
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive Director
ZHOU Xijian (appointed with effect from 5 February 2015)

Executive Directors

ZHANG Qi (appointed with effect from 5 February 2015)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (appointed with effect from 5 February 2015)
WANG Lu Yen (resigned with effect from 23 February 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming (resigned with effect from 23 February 2015)

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, Mr. ZHANG Qi and Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil, in
accordance with bye-laws 86(2) of the Bye-laws, retired and were re-
elected at the special general meeting held on 22 June 2015.

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. Jakob
Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of
the Bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors' service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFQ")
(Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

EERFALAREEBZEZE RS -
BRORESH 2R

RZZE-—RFOA=+tH  ARRZEZRTH
RENARBREAERBREE (EEREBE
Pl s EES ARG ([EERBERG )
SEXVER) 2B - HHEARG REFFHEABLA
ARBREBEZ RMEGRIIF 352 KFE 2B
MR LRR » (T E) RBFZLETRIZAHM
EARRA N2 S FORRIAT -

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the (a) RALQXFTREEHEIEZRMDF 2
Company and its associated corporations mRKE

Percentage

shareholding in

the same class

Company/Name of Number and class of securities as

associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2015
(Note 1)

R-T—-&H%F

MA=+H

ERERE S

KDFHBLIEZERE EEES 227 HEHA RER ZRERDL
(st 1)

Company ZHOU Xijian Interest of controlled 477,747,619 69.77%
PiN/NG]| RN corporations ordinary shares
(Note 2) LB
R EER 2 v

(HftEE2)

Company WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Beneficial owner 2,500,000 0.37%
PiN/NC]| EEF EnEAEA ordinary shares
el
()

Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
YiN/NC] T & BEnfEEA ordinary shares
)

Daohe Global Investment ZHOU Xijian Beneficial owner 8,000 80%
BRI A RN EnEAEA ordinary shares
B
()

Daohe Global Investment ZHANG Qi Beneficial owner 2,000 20%
BRI E SR EA] BEnfEEA ordinary shares

8]
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Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations

(continued)
(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (continued)

Notes:
(1) The letter "L" represents the Director's long position in the shares.

(2) As at 30 April 2015, (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited owned 348,620,332
shares of the Company, representing approximately 50.92% of the issued
share capital of the Company; (ii) Fame City Developments Limited owned
67,673,359 shares of the Company, representing approximately 9.88% of
the issued share capital of the Company; (iii) Oceanic Force Limited owned
61,361,928 shares of the Company, representing approximately 8.96% of
the issued share capital of the Company; and (iv) Winning Port International
Limited owned 92,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.01% of the issued share capital of the Company. By virtue of the relationship
between Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Daohe Global Investment as stated in Note
(2) to the paragraph headed “Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the Company" below, Mr.
ZHOU Xijian was deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to
be interested in the shares of the Company in which Daohe Global Investment,
Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited, Oceanic
Force Limited and Winning Port International Limited were interested.

(b) Interests and short positions in the underlying shares
of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2015, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or short positions in the underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(c) Interests and short positions in the debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2015, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures
Movements of the options granted by the Company to the Directors

under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year under review
were set out in the paragraph headed “Share options and share option
schemes" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

BEERAQATAREHEBEE KM -
AR RESPZER E

(a) EAZFQﬁ&EEHﬁﬁiiZEﬁﬁqJZ*E

mRRE (&

B 7E -

0 [LI THEESRRD P ZITE »

(2) RZZ—AFWMA=+H " (i) Sino Remittance

Holding Limited £ [ {2 % 75 PR /2 511 5 348,620,332
RA DB - EARBEBEITIRAL 50.920
(i) Fame City Developments Limited %7 67,673,359
RAD B - (AR BB EITARAA)9.88% :
(iii) Oceanic Force Limited 4 61,361,928 fE AR
AR - AR A RIBBEITIRAL8.96% : K& (iv)
Winning Port International Limited 78 92,000 B A%

AR - (EARR BB BEITRAL0.01% - AR
TX[EEZRERAR ARG RAEBERG 2
m ROR A ] —BRP AL (2) P JB) 75 18 5t A BE AN
RRIRE 2 HMEE  REBEESFRPEEOE
XVEBZ 3+ AR S AR BRI A B FIR IR
& ~ Sino Remittance Holding Limited Z=E[EIE I A
R 2@ - Fame City Developments Limited * Oceanic
Force Limited 5 Winning Port International Limited FfT
BB ZMEAREIRGD < #a o

(b) REQXARHEMEBEE 2HERS S
Z%ﬁ&/ﬂ
RZZE-—AFHA=+H  ARFRIZES
RITRAEZBEN AR R REEEE®E 2
HEARNFERALARRRREES R
HEGEHIE 52T E 2 B Mz Rk
B HRBEFETRRMAEG AR A R
Pz iEEHSBORE o

() REQAAREBEBLIBEz2ESP 2R
mRAE
R-ZE—RAFNA=+H ' ARAIZES
ROTBBEBERNR AR REER AR
BEHFPHEEATLTAARNGREEANPE
1&BIZE 352 (517 B 2 B 2 Em AR -
SRBRETFTRBENEARR KRB
BEIORE °

EEREROHES ZEF
ARRBRARBFEEARE -TFT - FREEET
ARTESZRRREDEN X [HBRERE
PetEnt &l —B -

B EXPrEE N - RAMEEFE TR

ARBHEEAERDF - FFRMERF B
RABESET I EMRPFAEE R AR AR
DA ST B AR B 2 B S B 75 T BRI 2% o

EREEEsRAT —T-ness 49



Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 30 April 2015, the following shareholders (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company whose interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are set out above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREARTRG REBEREGF 2
BERARR

RZZB—AFMA=+H"  TIBRERERER
Bl Btn RARRER D < s R B B BN EX 2
RRABEBERITHAHEIN RARR Zkh Rk
HEABRD P HEEALALARRREZE S KRS IF
DI 336 IRIFE 2 B LM 2 EEHTORE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares of the interests as at
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2015
(Note 1)
R=-Z—HF
BFEAXRLQT B=+Hz
TERREE 56 REHBE RRBOES
(HIEE)
Sino Remittance Holding Limited Beneficial owner 348,620,332 (L) 50.92%
EEZRER AT EFHA
Fame City Developments Limited Beneficial owner 67,673,359 (L) 9.88%
EnEEA
Oceanic Force Limited Beneficial owner 61,361,928 (L) 8.96%
EnEEA
Daohe Global Investment Interest of controlled 477,747,619 (L) 69.77%
BRI E corporations (Note 2)

RARHAE 2 s (Mt 2)

Notes:
(1) The letter "L" represents the entity's long position in the shares.

(2) As at 30 April 2015, (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited owned 348,620,332 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 50.92% of the issued share capital
of the Company; (i) Fame City Developments Limited owned 67,673,359 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 9.88% of the issued share capital of the
Company; (i) Oceanic Force Limited owned 61,361,928 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 8.96% of the issued share capital of the Company;
and (iv) Winning Port International Limited owned 92,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 0.01% of the issued share capital of the Company. Each
of Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited, Oceanic Force
Limited and Winning Port International Limited is wholly-owned by Daohe Global
Investment, which is in turn 80%-owned by Mr. ZHOU Xijian and 20%-owned by Mr.
ZHANG Qi. Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr. ZHANG Qi, the Directors, are also the directors
of Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited, Oceanic Force
Limited, Winning Port International Limited and Daohe Global Investment. As such,
Daohe Global Investment was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company
in which Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited, Oceanic
Force Limited and Winning Port International Limited were interested by virtue of the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO.
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Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2015, the Company had not been
notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken during the
year under review are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.
Save as disclosed below, these related party transactions either (i) do not
constitute connected or continuing connected transactions or (i) fall
under the definition of a connected or continuing connected transaction,
but are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Connected transaction

The following transaction between a connected person (as defined under
Rule 14A.06(7) of the Listing Rules) and the Company constitutes a
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and is subject
to the announcement, reporting and annual review requirements but is
exempt from the independent shareholders' approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction has been entered into
and is ongoing for which relevant announcements had been made by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transaction relating to Tamarind
International Limited

On 28 November 2011, Tamarind International Limited (“Tamarind") (for
its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time (together with
Tamarind are collectively referred to as “Tamarind Group")) entered into
a master lease agreement (“Master Lease Agreement”) with Wellbuild
International Limited ("Wellbuild") (for its own and on behalf of its
subsidiaries from time to time (together with Wellbuild are collectively
referred to as "Wellbuild Group")) whereby Wellbuild Group agreed to lease
to Tamarind Group certain portion of a commercial building in Shanghai, PRC
(“Properties”) with gross floor area of approximately 1,967 square metres
by way of sub-letting arrangement for a term of 3 years commencing on
1 April 2012. The monthly rent (inclusive of management fee) payable by
Tamarind to Wellbuild under the Master Lease Agreement is HK$330,000. The
Properties are used by Tamarind Group as its Shanghai office.

Wellbuild is (i) a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roly International; and
(i) a controlled corporation and an associate of Mr. WANG Lu Yen who
was an executive Director during the period from 1 May 2014 to 23
February 2015 and a director of Wellbuild. Accordingly, Wellbuild and its
subsidiaries are regarded as connected persons of the Company.
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Connected transaction (continued)
Continuing connected transaction relating to Tamarind

International Limited (continued)

On 31 March 2015, the Master Lease Agreement was renewed in
respect of the Properties for a term of 6 months at a monthly rent of
HK$330,000 commencing on 1 April 2015 (“Renewed Master Lease
Agreement”). Save for the term, the terms of the Renewed Master Lease
Agreement are the same as the Master Lease Agreement. The renewal of
the Master Lease Agreement was for the continuing business needs of
the Group.

As Mr. WANG Lu Yen is a connected person of the Company by being an
executive Director in the last 12 months from the date of the Renewed
Master Lease Agreement, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries are regarded
as connected persons of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Renewed Master Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The total amount of rent paid under the Master Lease Agreement for
the period from 1 May 2014 to 31 March 2015 and under the Renewed
Master Lease Agreement for the period from 1 April 2015 to 30 April
2015 was HK$3,960,000.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider the above continuing connected transaction was conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing it. The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are of the view that the terms of this continuing connected
transaction was fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The above continuing connected transaction was reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors at the meeting of the Audit
Committee held on 10 July 2015. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transaction
was entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the
agreement governing it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain fact finding procedures
on the above continuing connected transaction on a sample basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules" issued by the HKICPA. The Board confirmed that
it had received a letter from the auditors of the Company confirming
that nothing has come to the auditors' attention that the continuing
connected transaction:
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Connected transaction (continued)
(1) has not been approved by the Board;

(2)  was not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company if the transaction involve provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(3)  was not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the agreement governing the transaction; and

(4)  has exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in
the previous announcements dated 28 November 2011 and 13 July
2015.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transaction stated above. A copy of the auditors' letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Directors' interests in contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 32 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year under review, the five largest customers of the Group
in aggregate accounted for approximately 75.3% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately 34.3% of
the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 30.8% of the Group's total shipment volume placed by the
Group and the largest vendor accounted for approximately 7.7% of the
Group's total shipment value placed by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
500 of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest in the
top five customers or vendors noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year under review.
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Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 148 and 149.

Charitable donation
During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately US$3,000.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance Report" on pages 18
to 39.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year under review.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company to hold office until conclusion of
the next annual general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the Directors.

Events after the reporting period

Share subdivision, change of board lot size and change of
company name

According to the circular published by the Company dated 29 May
2015, the Board proposed (i) that each of the existing issued and
unissued shares of US$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
be subdivided into five (5) subdivided shares of US$0.004 each (“Share
Subdivision"); (i) to change the board lot size of trading in the shares
from 2,000 shares to 10,000 subdivided shares as soon as possible
after the Share Subdivision becomes effective; and (iii) to change the
registered primary name of the Company from “Linmark Group Limited"
to "Dache Global Group Limited" and to adopt "#&EFIIRERE B H R A
A]" as its secondary name to replace the existing Chinese name of " #k
EEBEBR/AF" which has been used for identification purposes only
(“Change of Company Name").
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Events after the reporting period (continued)

Share subdivision, change of board lot size and change of
company name (continued)

The Share Subdivision and the Change of Company Name were approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 22 June 2015. The Share Subdivision became effective
on 23 June 2015.

With effect from 23 June 2015, the board lot size of trading in the
shares of the Company had been changed from 2,000 shares to 10,000
subdivided shares.

On 25 June 2015, the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda issued a
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and a Certificate of
Secondary Name certifying the Change of Company Name with effect
from 23 June 2015. The Company is carrying out the necessary filing
procedures with the Companies Registry in Hong Kong under Part 16 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

Subscription of new shares under general mandate

On 17 June 2015, a total of 20,000,000 ordinary shares (representing
approximately 2.84% of the then issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the subscription immediately after completion of the
allotment) were allotted and issued to six subscribers pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the subscription agreement dated 1 June 2015
entered by and between the Company and the subscribers.

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated 1
June 2015 and 17 June 2015 in relation to the subscription of new
shares under general mandate. The net proceeds from the subscription
after deducting all relevant costs and expenses were approximately
HK$64,000,000 (equivalent to US$8,205,000). The Company intends to
use the net proceeds from the subscription to enlarge its capital base and
prepare for any development opportunities as and when they arise.

On behalf of the Board

ZHOU Xijian
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 July 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Ernst & Young

e
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Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432

WWWw.ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the shareholders of Daohe Global Group Limited

(Formerly known as Linmark Group Limited)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daohe
Global Group Limited (formerly known as Linmark Group Limited) (the
"Company") and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on pages
58 to 147, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 April 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Auditors' responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 30
April 2015, and of the Group's financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 July 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
= A4S s

0y =| Eﬁﬁ-

Year ended 30 April 2015
BHE-_ZT—AFWNA=1THILFE

2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—F
Us$'ooo US$'000
FER FET
Note (Restated)
MI5E (&ES)
REVENUE g 5 97,872 103,397
Cost of sales SHEK A (72,879) (76,427)
Gross profit EH 24,993 26,970
Other income Hapdg A 5 984 1,353
General and administrative expenses —M AT (23,292) (23,329)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R — KB AT 2 EE 28 - (138)
Share of loss of a joint venture B —REE QR ZEE - ©
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AT R 6 2,685 4,855
Income tax expense st 9 (1,009) (399)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY R FEERET 10 1,676 4,456
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO KATEBERESZFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhEREF
THE COMPANY (expressed in US cent) (AEMZ5) 1
Basic (Note) b NG ) 0.05 0.13
Diluted (Note) 5 (H757) 0.05 0.13

Details of the dividends and distribution to shareholders of the Company

are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Note:

Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015, as further explained in Note 36 to
the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= A2\ e

;Zu/T\ = EEJ‘I fni%
Year ended 30 April 2015
BE_T-HFMHA=THILFE

2015 2014
—E-I% —TmEF
US$'000 Us$'000
TEr FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEA 1,676 4,456
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip2EBA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified HigEnEzEne
subsequently to profit or loss: H2ERA
Exchange differences: BE R
Translation of foreign operations BEBINER 33 172
Reclassification adjustment ENHERAE
—loss on dissolution of a subsidiary —BE—RHB AR ZEE - 138
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified Higs#oEziEsns
subsequently to profit or loss Hip2EEA 33 310
Other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified HigresirB2Bse
subsequently to profit or loss: HM2EBRE :
Remeasurements from defined benefit plan THRREFEzETTE (34) (44)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR  FEH 2 (&) /WA M 266
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FEZEBRALE 1,675 4722

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ara ISR

As at 30 April 2015
RZZE-—RAFWMA="H

2015 2014
—E-HF —=—mEF
Note Us$'ooo US$'000
Mg FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R N 13 334 459
Goodwill B 14 26,333 26,333
Available-for-sale financial asset At ESRERE 15 84 84
Investment in a joint venture R—REEREZIRE 17 10 10
Deferred tax assets RETHITAE = 18 12 9
Total non-current assets ERENEEMRTE 26,773 26,895
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables JEUE SRR 19 4,236 6,221
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ JE{FRIE « e M EMEWEIE 20 3,305 2,422
Tax recoverable AJUg EI R IR - 566
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 21 17,044 14,611
Total current assets MEVEEBTR 24,585 23,820
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables JEHE S BRI 22 4,762 5,682
Accruals and other payables JESTE B N E b E FOA 23 11,164 9,675
Tax payable JERTTRIR 2,035 1,636
Total current liabilities mENA e 17,961 16,993
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 6,624 6,827
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERRBERE 33,397 33,722
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Post-employment benefits & B iR IRIEH 24 809 1,005
Total non-current liability EREEERE 809 1,005
NET ASSETS BEFE 32,588 32,717
EQUITY s
Issued capital BT 25 13,694 13,671
Reserves s 27(a) 18,894 19,046
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO A REE AEMS
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EREAR 32,588 32,717
ZHANG Qi RH WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rEEmEER

Year ended 30 April 2015
HE_T-—HFNA=TRHILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRER AR
Share Capital Exchange
Issued Share option Special  redemption  fluctuation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve eamings equity

B&fT Bt BRE ¥ EAEE  EXRD & Bt
kA & iR i Bl (1] B 45

Note  USSOO0  USSOOD  USSOOD  USSOOD  USSOO0  US$00 LSS0 LS00
e TRt T R TR TRt T TRt T

At 1 My 2014 R-Z-mERA-A 13671 9958 69 184 ) (128 895 3217
Proftfo the yeer EREH - - - - - - 1676 1676
Other comprehensive incomef{oss) EREMRENA/

for the year: (&)

Exchange differences on trarslaton BERINER

of foreign operations LEREE - - - - - ki - ki)
Remeasurements from defined ERENEE
benefit plan LEiE - - - - - - (3 (34)

Total comprehensive income ER2EHA

for the year o - - - - - 33 1,642 1,675
Employees share option scheme EEERETE

- proceed from issue of shares -BRAMETE % B 79 - - - - - 102

- transfer to share premium -BRABNEE % - 2% (26) - - - - -
Share options apsedcancelled ERBLR/

during the year LI - - ®3) - - - I -
Final 2014 dividend paid BR-E-RERERE 1 - - - - - - (1,063) (1,063)
Interim 2015 dividend paid ERZE-RERERE 1 - - - - - - (843) (843)
At 30 April 2015 R=%-EEMA=TA 13,694 10,063 - 184 4 (95) 8,694 32,588
Representing; i
Proposed 2015 final dividend RE-Z-nERERE 1 - - - - - - 26 26
Others £ 13,694 10,063 - 184 48 (95) 8,468 32,362
At 30 Aprl 2015 R-R-EFMAZtH 13,694 10,063 - 184 “® (99) 8694 32,588

ENEREEERAT —T—n45% 01
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FORERHE
Year ended 30 April 2015
HE-Z-—hFHA=THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YN FUN
Share Capital Exchange
Issued Share option Special  redemption  fluctuation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve earnings equity
BET o) ke Wi EAEE  ERED 72 s
& HE ffe ! e G B Gk
Note US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 U000 US$000 US§'000 US$000
i3 TEL e TE TEn e e e TEL
At 1 May 2013 RZE5-=F1f-A 13,661 2,11 206 184 4 (438) 6354 42,746
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 4456 4456
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EFEM2ERA -
Exchange differences on trarslation WS
of foreign operations LERER - - - - - 7 - m
Reclassifcation adjustment EnERE
- loss on dissolution of -BH-FHEAA
a subsidiary LER - - - - - 138 - 138
Remeasturements from defined ERENEE
benefit plan LEiE - - - - - - (44 (44
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 AU ALE - - - - - 310 441 4m
Employees share option scheme EEERETE
— proceed from issue of shares - BRIARE A % 10 3 - - - - - 45
— transfer to share premium -BRARIMEE 2% - 12 (12 - - - - -
Share options lapsed during the year B K Bk HE - - (14 - - - 145 -
Share premium reduction HIRRAEE - (12600 - - - - 12800 -
Distrbution 7k 1 - - - - - - (12863 (12863)
Firal 2013 dividend paid ENZE-ZERERE - - - - - - (1054 (1054
Interim 2014 dividend paid ENZE-IERERE 1 - - - - - - (679 (679
At 30 April 2014 RZZ-REMA=+A 13671 9958 £ 184 48 (126) 8915 7

#

of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital
of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange of shares.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ Eﬁiﬁ%%

Year ended 30 April 2015
BRE_ZT-HFMNA=+THIFE

2015 2014
—EB-HF —T-F
Note US$'000 US$'000
k3 FER FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ REXEKRERE
Profit before tax BRI AT A 2,685 4,855
Adjustments for: KRR
Share of loss of a joint venture R —REaE AR EE - 1
Interest income FEMA 5 (7 7)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE -« BB REE
plant and equipment pa & 6 (3) Y
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R — KM B A E 2 EiE 6 - 138
Depreciation e 6 273 756
2,948 5,742
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables RIS B SREFUR L (1L h0) 1,985 (765)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FENFOA - Hme MEM
deposits and other receivables JEWRIE (BB ), R (883) 1,306
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FENE SRR CRA), /18N (920) 156
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FEFTE R &ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁm
other payables =, O 1,489 (813)
Decrease in post-employment benefits BER ﬁ%aﬂm o (230) (17)
Cash generated from operations KEEBFIBES 4,389 5,609
Tax paid [=ANE A (47) (587)
Net cash flows from operating activities K TRENFTISIR S FEE 4,342 5,022
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFBRERERE
Interest received BUFLE 7 7
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  EEE Y% - E K& (150) (175)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment Fr{S5kIR 5 1
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEBTER ST (138) (167)

ERMEREEERAT —T-FFF%R 03
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEBERER

Year ended 30 April 2015
HE_ZT-—AEMA=1THILEE

2015 2014
—E-hE —E—OF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHFEESRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D TS FRIE 102 45
Dividends paid B E (1,906) (1,933)
Distribution paid BRIk - (12,863)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEETFEIR 55 (1,804) (14,751)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BeRBHESEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS i, GRd) R 2,400 (9,896)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FUzHEeMREFEERE 14,611 24,335
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net RSB FE TR 33 172
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZ2E®
END OF YEAR RESEEER 17,044 14,611
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND HeRESEEEBEHZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS LD AT
Cash and bank balances B MIBIT% 17,044 14,611

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015



Statement of Financial Position

B FEAR IR

As at 30 April 2015

R-_ZE—RFHA=1+H

2015 2014
—g-5% —z—p
Note US$'000 US$'000
M5E FER FE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIZIRE 16 34,988 36,560
Total non-current assets ERENEEARE 34,988 36,560
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments TEfSFRIR 20 59 2
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEIAE 21 425 248
Total current assets MEVEELERR 484 250
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Accruals JEFTE A 23 185 182
Total current liabilities mENEEER 185 182
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEZRE 299 68
NET ASSETS EEFE 35,287 36,628
EQUITY fE=
Issued capital BT 25 13,694 13,671
Reserves ] 27(b) 21,593 22,957
TOTAL EQUITY R 35,287 36,628

ZHANG Qi R
Director &

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF

Director &%

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

b el

30 April 2015
“E—RFWMA=+H
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

2.1

Daohe Global Group Limited (formerly known as Linmark Group
Limited) (“Company”) is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together with the Company are collectively
referred to as the "Group") are principally engaged in the sales of
merchandise and the provision of procurement and value-added
services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January 2002 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange") since 10
May 2002. The Directors regard Sino Remittance Holding Limited,
which is incorporated in Seychelles, as the holding company of the
Company and Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in Seychelles, as the ultimate holding company of the
Company as at 30 April 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (which
comprise standards, interpretations and International Accounting
Standards (“IASs") approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance which, because the Company has
not early adopted the revised Listing Rules issued by the Stock
Exchange, are those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.32). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an available-for-sale financial asset
which has been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in United States dollars (“US$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

For identification purpose only
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
30 April 2015. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI 5
30 April 2015
—ZE-REMA=1H

CHANGES
DISCLOSURES

2.2

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new
interpretation for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 27 (Revised)

Amendments to |AS 32

Amendments to |AS 39

[FRIC-Int 21

Amendments to IFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 3
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to IFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to IFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the revised standards and new interpretation has

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition’

Accounting for Contingent

Consideration in a Business
Combination’

Short-term Receivables and
Payables

Meaning of Effective IFRSs

had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11
IFRS 14

[FRS 15

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and |AS 41

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to
IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?
Requlatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Amendments to a number
of IFRSs!

Amendments to a number
of IFRSs'

Amendments to a number
of IFRSs?
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

30 April 2015

—E-hFMEA=1TH

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

2.4

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

4+ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

J Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 April
2016. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these changes.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of the operations
and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and

receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control, is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investment in the joint venture, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint venture is included
as part of the Group's investment in a joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

74

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person:

(1)

(i)

(iif)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years or the

lease terms
Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

78

POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Reqgular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include an available-for-sale financial
asset, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and deposits
and other receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition”
below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

80

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets, if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

82

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. "Significant" is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss - is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is "significant” or "prolonged” requires
judgement in making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and other
payables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EEEFEEME @

84

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued) EREE @
Subsequent measurement 63 3y -4

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of merchandise, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  commission income, when the underlying goods procured by
the Group are shipped;

(c) from the rendering of services, reimbursement income
from customers, handling fee income and inspection and
laboratory testing income, when the services are rendered;
and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits

()

Pension schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme ("MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees' basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
15% to 20% of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined separately
using the projected unit credit valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability) and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Pension schemes (continued)

Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under "administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements;

° net interest expense or income.

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

92

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
joint venture are currencies other than the United States dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into United States dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2015 was US$26,333,000
(2014: US$26,333,000). More details are given in Note 14 to the
financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

94

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of its customers and other debtors and the current
market condition which requires the use of judgements and
estimates. When the expectation on the recoverability of trade
and other receivables is different from the original estimates,
such difference will impact the carrying value of trade and
other receivables and impairment provisions in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. Management assesses
the provision at the end of each reporting period. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables and other receivables as at 30 April
2015 were US$4,236,000 (2014: US$6,221,000) and US$1,621,000
(2014: US$1,301,000), respectively. More details are given in Notes
19 and 20 to the financial statements.

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact on the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the periods in which such determination is made.
The carrying amount of net tax payable and deferred tax assets
as at 30 April 2015 were US$2,035,000 (2014: US$1,070,000) and
US$12,000 (2014: US$9,000) respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income tax and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the
future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. At 30 April 2015,
no impairment losses have been recognised for the available-
for-sale financial asset (2014: Nil). The carrying amount of the
available-for-sale financial asset was approximately US$84,000
(2014: US$84,000). More details are given in Note 15 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, hardgoods, consumer electronic products and
labels; and

(b)  provision of services including procurement and value-
added services relating to the procurement agency business.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except
that interest income, loss on dissolution of a subsidiary, share of
loss of a joint venture as well as corporate and other unallocated

4.

REFWER )
EREIHERAECED B XS Ut
BRAEERBIAFGETEELRATE - D88
FIRTIBBE AR A M £ 2 7]
EWRH EaFIEL TG o KLFABBRFAT R
MzZerEH FERNEBRE NN —2
MR BWA - B —KMNB AR ZEE -
R —XREERRIZEBURGEREAM
AOEHAZ B TBIERZTER -

expense are excluded from such measurement.

MERE 2 $HE REEDRBAE R M ER
F=ZTETHEZEEBERS -

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
EmiHE R AR A% &5t

Year ended 30 April 2015 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BE-_Z-—HFMA=+HLEE FErR FErx FErx
Segment revenue: SRS
Revenue from external customers REINARP 2 WS 83,002 14,870 97,872
Segment results DEHEE 1,993 1,222 3,215
Interest income FEMA 7
Corporate and other unallocated EREMASE

expenses B (537)
Profit before tax PR3 AT ) 2,685
Income tax expense FriSfif X (1,009)
Profit for the year FE R 1,676
Other segment information: HibpEER .
Depreciation e 142 131 273
Capital expenditures BARAR 42 108 150
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE B R FURE - 125 125
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESEER @

Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
Bk TRHARTS &
Year ended 30 April 2014 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
HE-Z-FOA=-1+HIEFE F=T F=T F=T
Segment revenue: PEWRE
Revenue from external customers REINARE 2 W= 86,811 16,586 103,397
Segment results DEEE 2,266 3,211 5,477
Interest income FLEMA 7
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary RN — KW B AR 2 BB (138)
Share of loss of a joint venture R —REE QR EE (M
Corporate and other unallocated EREMARSE
expenses FisZ (490)
Profit before tax BRA AT 7 4,855
Income tax expense FriSFif (399)
Profit for the year FEm A 4,456
Other segment information: HithpEER :
Depreciation e 300 456 756
Capital expenditures EZNGR 100 75 175
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment ~ FEUE 5 B8R0
of trade receivables CRERE), RE (15) 42 27
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESEER @

Geographical information i E R
(a)  Revenue from external customers (@) RBEINAEREZMKZE
2015 2014
—E-AF —Z=—-mE
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Australia SEM 35,002 36,823
Africa FEM 24,703 23,201
North America JEEM 19,240 16,874
Europe B 12,270 18,892
Others HAtb 6,657 7,607
97,872 103,397
The revenue information above is based on the locations of Tt EmER TR EREFTEM 2
the customers. Al o
(b)  Non-current assets (b) SEREEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mE
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Hong Kong BB 26,555 26,634
Others HAtb 122 168
26,677 26,802
The non-current asset information above is based on the A IERBEEEN IRIEEENE
locations of assets and excludes an available-for-sale W2 WTAreEfFE—ErHHESq
financial asset and deferred tax assets. BENMELERHIBERE
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or
more of the Group's revenue is set out below:

KREFBER @
FRTEEFER

REETBREF (BEZSERPHAEE KT
100 8 LA £ ) Z W& A e T ¢

Operating segment 2015 2014

KEDHE —E-HF —E—EF

Us$'ooo US$'000

FEx FET

Customer A Sales of merchandise 33,5632 34,578
EFEA Emin e

Customer B Sales of merchandise 24,703 23,201
=P8 Emin e

58,235 57,779

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WaRkHEAMUA

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; commission income and the value of services
rendered.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as follows:

AEBZWENRAEBEER  HEE
HEMBEREREZ T MR 2ERFE:
BEWARRERSE ZEIE -

AEEZ Wk REAMBRAZ AT

2015 2014
—E-HF —=—mEF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FEr
Revenue Y=

Sales of merchandise Bk 83,002 86,811
Commission income He WA 14,862 16,579
Rendering of services TRHARTS 8 7
97,872 103,397

Other income Hug A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 7 7
Reimbursement income from customers REZFHERKA 1 22
Handling fee income FEBRA 333 359
Inspection and laboratory testing income BB R EREAFHBA 128 353
Others HAtb 505 612
984 1,353
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PFRFANER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEE 2 BRFL AT S TR (GFA) A
(crediting): T&IF :
2015 2014
—E-hE —E—-OF
Note Us$'ooo us$'000
FfaE FErx FET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEZHA 72,271 76,160
Cost of services provided EIRHARTS 2 AR 608 267
Depreciation e 13 273 756
Minimum lease payments under KEHETHERS
operating leases: (N
Furniture and equipment ERINSE T 91 83
Office premises and staff quarters MAEBEMRETIRESR 1,977 1,509
2,068 1,592
Auditors’ remuneration* IZ RN BN &
Audit services FIZIRT 318 335
Non-audit services HEZ IR 107 156
425 491
Employee benefit expense EEE@FIR%
(including Directors' (BREESHH
remuneration - Note 7): - BEE7) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o TEAL R 13,481 14,056
Staff welfare and benefits BT RF Kait 1,651 1,637
Pension scheme contributions” RN B
- defined contribution scheme - ERRMHRGETE 519 480
- defined benefit plans - EREEAIETE 27 23
15,678 16,096
Foreign exchange differences, net PN =R 55 296 214
Impairment of trade receivables FEUNE SR FURE 19 125 27
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment BlipdlE (3) ©
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R — M B A E 2 E5E 28 - 138
* Of the above audit and non-audit services fees, US$309,000 (2014: * ELiEZREBEERBERAY 25F

US$326,000) and US$107,000 (2014: US$146,000) respectively are payable to
the Company's auditors.

At 30 April 2015, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2014: Nil).
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7. EEHM
Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the AREZRE EMRANMEEREQRTEN (F
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong NE)FI6IIFATREZEEHMNT ¢
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-AF —Z=—mE
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEH FER F=r
Fees wE 177 173
Other emoluments: Hie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEREDN &= 1,229 1311
Performance related bonus FIREMATIELL - 345
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIMHR 81 72
1,310 1,728
Total FEn 1,487 1,901

Certain Directors were granted share options in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 26 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such options which
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above Directors' remuneration disclosures.

ETESERRFRAANEEPTR M Z RS
ERARAEEET SR T 2 BAE - £
— SR BENMBRRME 26 - ZFBK
BZRAFEDIREL BHERT  YORB
BHRACRER AR - Mat AXFERH
BHRRZEBNEBER EXZEEH M
WEA -

wnEneEsRAn —=-asen 101
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEHM @
The emoluments of each Director are set out below: BEEEMEEYN T -
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus  contributions  remuneration
§e 28 REHES  BAeHE
e ENFIE i HE kg
HE-E-I1F US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Year ended 30 April 2015 MA=+HLEEE TEn TEn FEn TEn TEn
Executive Directors: HTES:
ZHANG Qi ) R () - 1 - 1 12
IONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE - 465 - 47 512
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil () BER() - 100 - 10 110
WANG Lu Yen (i) THE () - 653 - 3 676
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
ZHOU Xijian () A& 11 - - - 1
WONG Wai Ming (i) 12 (i) 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive Directors: B FHTES :
WANG Arthur Minshiang ThE 44 - - - 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius BT 55 - - - 55
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 37 - - - 37
171 1,229 - 81 1,487
HE-T-IF
Year ended 30 April 2014 MA=tALEE
Executive Directors: HTEE:
WANG Lu Yen TiE - 874 205 28 1127
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF - #7 120 4 601
Non-executive Director: FHTESE .
WWONG Wai Ming BRH 37 - - - 37
Independent non-executive Directors: B FHTES .
WANG Arthur Minshiang ThE 4 - - - 4
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius BEN 55 - - - 55
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 37 - - - 37
173 13N 345 72 1,901
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7.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes:

(i) Appointed on 5 February 2015. The amounts above include only their
remuneration during their tenure as directors.

(if) Resigned as executive director and appointed as honorary chairman (non-

executive and not a member of the Board) on 23 February 2015. The amounts
above include only his remuneration during his tenure as director.

(i) Resigned on 23 February 2015. The amounts above include only his
remuneration during his tenure as director.

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2014: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2015, no emolument was paid to
or receivable by any of the Directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office as
a director of any member of the Group or of any other office in
connection with the management of the Group (2014: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2014: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in Note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2014: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

BEEHFM @
B &E -

0] R-E-—AF_ARAREERME - LASBEES
ERENEFETHRLZM -

(i) R-FB-—AF_A_t=ZHEENTEFLE
RERKBIRCGERITRIFEEERE) - £
MEREBERNESEHANOFTH -

(i) MR-TE—AF-_A-+=HEF  LiiLHEE
BEERESTHANNETH -

FAMBEEENELRERETABEH
ZH(ZF—OF : |) -

RBEZE_T—AFHUA=tTBELEFE I
BEREMNESFNUBNMEFESENE
RN MBARE 2 2R/ KERAKE
EAKBEARIZETHARASEEEE
AR EA B 2 BB E (=T — 4
&) o

EfusEHMES
FRAURHMERBEMLL(—F M
FMA)EE - EFMFBHN EXHE
7o FRN - A= (ZT—MEF - =f1)¥F
ARREFHTREHE ERFHNEEZ
FENFRBOT

follows:
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—EF
US$'000 US$'000
Group TEE FEx FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEDH 786 677
Performance related bonuses FRIFENRTEAT 30 119
Equity-settled share option expense VAR HE ST 1+ 2 B AR i B - -
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHR 9 10
825 806

whEpsEsRAn —2-—neeg 103
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
The number of non-director and non chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands
presented in Hong Kong dollars (*HK$") is as follows:

EfVBREHFNES @
e A FEE S R IETTHRAE R 8 IS
T2V ZHME A THER AT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2015 2014
—E-EEF —T—uF
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 702 1,500,000 75 7T
(equivalent to US$128,535 to US$192,801) (FBS 7 128,535 37T
%2192,80137T) - 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T £ 2,000,000 75 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 to US$257,069) (A5 192,802 37T
% 257,069 % T) - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7 JT = 3,000,000 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 to US$385,604) (FEH2 257,070 7T
Z£ 385,604 1) 3 2
3 3

During the year ended 30 April 2015, no emolument was paid
to or received by any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group (2014: Nil).

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

BE_ZT-OFMNA=1TRHILFE  HE
A A & = ¥ B R B S S (R F
REMMESESMBRNMBERNEBF Z
RE) MEREBAKEEHEENBL
ZEEBEE(CT-HF | -

8B
EBNEHRIIBREBEFAREBEE 2
FERR B8 A 4% 16.500 (== — PO 4F : 16.5%)
IR EEME c HENIMNEE Z ERT
mAB BRI AN LB L ERER AR
ZIRITRETE -

2015 2014

—E-REF — TP

Us$'ooo US$'000

Group rEH FER F=7T

Current BIER

- Hong Kong - B 233 378

- Outside Hong Kong - BHELAIMNBE 117 84
Net underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERETR(BREEE)

in prior years FEE 662 (73)

Deferred (Note 18) JEAE (KI7E18) 3) 10

Total tax expense for the year NEEHIERZ A5 1,009 399
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

8B X )

BRAREARB REKXZ BN ERRPTE
AAREAAEM R EBRBT AR 2
AR BB ERNRFEZHBARSZ

HERMT ¢

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—mE
US$'000 US$'000
Group TEE FER F=x
Profit before tax FR A5 AR A 2,685 4,855
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% 1 16.5% AEE B RGTE 2 BiE
(2014: 16.5%) —ZT U4 : 16.5%) 443 801
Adjustments in respect of current tax iR BRI BN EATR 1B
of previous periods 2 R 662 (73)
Effect of different rates for companies OB Ath BLERE [ A4S TS
operating in other jurisdictions REEATRARE 22 109 203
Income not subject to tax BERBURA (2,585) (2,689)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2,370 2,170
Tax losses utilised from previous periods )BT AR 2 B IR R (87) (168)
Tax losses not recognised RER TIABE 51 49
Others Hth 46 106
Tax expense for the year REEMIARE 1,009 399

As of the date of this annual report, the Group received protective
assessments amounting to approximately HK$137,000,000
(equivalent to US$17,564,000) from the Inland Revenue Department of
Hong Kong ("IRD") in respect of queries on the modus operandi of the
Group and the chargeability of profits for the years of assessment
from 2003/2004 to 2008/2009. Objections have been lodged by
the Group against the protective assessments. In addition, Tax
Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to
US$673,000) have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the
Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under
protective assessments for these years.

RAFHRAH  AEEEREEAEER
—ET= /TN E_ZTET)\ /T F
NABEEEERN R RN 2 BRAT 2
B ZESERER(HER]) REMHE
2181 49137,000,0007% 7T (572 17,564,0003%
T0) o AEEEREEFTFRIE L RE o It

SN RABMEKNE R R G EEN

A%

EFEREETIRMEIMN2RR - BE
{E1H5,250,0007%8 7T (FHE 1 673,000F L) Z

B -

BEMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

10.

(1M1

106

In April 2015, with the assistance of an independent tax
advisor, the Group submitted a settlement proposal as part of
negotiations with the IRD (not yet agreed) in relation to this case
and an additional tax provision in the amount of HK$5,900,000
(equivalent to US$756,000) was made in the financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2015. As at the close of the reporting
year, the settlement proposal is still under review by the IRD.
Despite the uncertainty about its outcome, the Group is of the
view that sufficient tax provisions have been made in the financial
statements based on the information available.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately US$463,000 (2014: US$510,000) (Note 27(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, after taking into account the Share Subdivision which was
effective from 23 June 2015, as detailed in Note 36 "Events after
the reporting period".

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for
the year ended 30 April 2014.
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RRFHER ARG RR
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BRER
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 1. BREF @)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based EBRERREERFTRBATEERE
on:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—P4F
(Restated)
(geE:5)
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, BB E KB FIEFFI{F A
used in the basic earnings per share LA TR AE(R SR
calculation (US$'000) (F=T) 1,676 4,456

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &R = INHETE 9 &
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 518 &A% L7 Z F) B {7 A

in issue during the year used in the basic ZFENEETEBR

earnings per share calculation ('000) (Note) ZIEFHE (FR) (A77E) 3,418,449 3,417,518
Effect of dilution - weighted average HETE LRk

number of ordinary shares: IS

Share options (‘000) (Note) BB HE (1) (MaE) 728 -

3,419,177 3,417,518

Note: it
Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015, as further explained in ER—F-AFNADROFANZEELAE - ¥
Note 36 to the financial statements. &R MIFE 36 1EE — PR ©
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12. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTION R E R 75K
2015 2014
—E-1fF —ZT—-mE
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Distribution, paid, of nil (2014: 2.928 HK cents) ERSRERERR &
per ordinary share (Note) (ZZ—U = 2.928/80l) (A7:L) - 12,863
Interim, paid, of 0.192 HK cent B B B R
(2014: 0.20 HK cent) i@k 0.192 781
per ordinary share (Note) (ZZ—DUF : 0.20781L) (B75%) 843 879
Final, proposed, of 0.05 HK cent BRARHRE SR
(20141 0.242 HK cent) 3% 0.05 751
per ordinary share (Note) (ZZ—mF : 024280L) (B13E) 226 1,063
1,069 14,805

108

A distribution of 2.928 HK cents per ordinary share (Note) was paid
to shareholders of the Company on 28 June 2013 pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at a special general meeting on 13 June
2013.

At a meeting held on 14 July 2015, the Directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of 0.05 HK cent per ordinary
share (after Share Subdivision) in respect of the year ended 30
April 2015. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 30 April
2016.

Note:

Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015, as further explained in
Note 36 to the financial statements.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥1% - BERRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEWMELE  BURRE AE &3t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE TER TER TERn TEn
30 April 2015 “E-AFMA=1tH
At 1 May 2014: RZT—MFERA—H :
Cost B%N 1,859 4,081 376 6316
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,784) (3.837) (236) (5,857)
Net carrying amount REFE 75 244 140 459
At 1 May 2014, net of R-ZE-NERA—B"
accumulated depreciation MR 25T E 75 244 140 459
Additions NE 17 133 - 150
Disposals & - )] - @
Depreciation provided during the year AEEBENE (73) (140) (60) (273)
Exchange realignment M i R - - _ .
At 30 April 2015, net of accumulated R-Z-REMA=1H
depreciation M REHE 19 235 80 334
At 30 April 2015: RZZ-AFMA=TAH:
Cost B 1,874 3,899 3N 6,144
Accumulated depreciation ZItE (1,855) (3,664) (291) (5.810)
Net carrying amount REFE 19 235 80 334
30 April 2014 “E-MEMA=TA
At 1 May 2013 RZE—=FRA—B:
Cost %N 1894 4370 376 6,640
Accumulated depreciation BFHE (1,290) (4133) (176) (5,599)
Net carrying amount REFE 604 237 200 1,041
At 1 May 2013, net of accumulated R-E—=f1A-A"
depreciation M ZEHE 604 237 200 1041
Additions NE 1 164 - 175
Disposals HE - - - -
Depreciation provided during the year FEERERE (539) (157) (60) (756)
Exchange realignment ek (1) - - (1)
At 30 April 2014, net of REZZ—MENA=FA
accumulated depreciation MR 25T E 75 244 140 459
At 30 April 2014 RZE—MEMA=1H :
Cost B%N 1859 4,081 376 6,316
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiE (1784) (3.837) (236) (5:857)
Net carrying amount REFE 75 244 140 459

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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B RS Rk M e
30 April 2015
—E-RFMA=FH
14. Goodwill (5SS
2015 2014
—®-5H%F —z—me
Us$'ooo US$'000
Group rEE FErx FET
At beginning and at end of year REVIRFLL 26,333 26,333
At end of year RELL
Cost DEN 34,827 34,827
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE (8.494) (8,494)
Net carrying amount BREFE 26,333 26,333

110

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating
units, which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

° Sales of merchandise; and
° Provision of services.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for the
period covered by the approved budget. Key assumptions include
the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, long term growth rates and
selection of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgement is required to determine the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 11% (2014: 11%). The estimated growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year
period is no more than 5%.

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015

AR ER R
BEECOPEENIRSEAEN (BRI 2
Hoo ) ERERR

s  HEmEE R
o EMARF -

WReEEBLH ARG € R E SR
FEEET  ERATFEEANSREEE
Ttt/ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁ%/if’ﬁﬂj WIRERER
AlETE - ERVEBIEEZEERAAMA 2R
%muiiﬁ\ Bl ERRERZRMEET - T2
BEBFEREREMNEZFEHER - KK
BART 2FHEN REERERAIRE
ZEZ - TEERUNIRMEBRIUESF
EXRREMGERBH CMBRIEE - HE
FTREREEHMEAZEIERRESTE
TELFIE  MEEBRB[OEDEHZZRS
mETE) E'Jﬁij(%;; °© iﬁﬂ’z/}lbi%ﬁ/ﬂ”%ﬁ
HRERE R 1100 (ZF—IF < 11%) © HEA
AFHUIINREELAEMNRESREMAN
TRHAIE R KA FH 5% o



14. Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-

14. BEu@m)
BERERE (B

PTEERRSELBMNHE ZEREEN

generating units is as follows: o
Sales of merchandise Provision of services Total
BmHEE RALARTE a5t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-HF TN ZEB-HFE —TNF ZE-HF —TNF
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
Group TEE FEx FET FErx FET FEx FET
Goodwill EES 26,333 26,333 - - 26,333 26,333
15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 15. JEESREE
2015 2014
—E-RF —EF—UF
Us$'ooo US$'000
Group AEEH FEx FET
Club membership, at fair value oM (EATE) 84 84

The fair value of the club membership is determined with
reference to the price quoted by the relevant club.

ERMERNATENE2EZEREM IR

BIRETE -

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RB AT Z®RE
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z=mE
US$'000 US$'000
Company AT FER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost K EmRE G (GRA) - -
Due from subsidiaries R NGIE €] 55,683 54,683
Due to subsidiaries FETPfT /& A Bl kIR (20,695) (18,123)
34,988 36,560
The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured, Fu&&fﬁ WEB ARG ZRESERF . &
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. B BYWEmEEERE -
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: WEBARFENT ¢

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation/ of issued to the Company
registration ordinary share/ FATEERERDE
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
&L ERITEBERRE
28 EAE Sk HEfRAEE H# B TEEH
Benchmark Profits Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBERRES (E REZR
Dowry Peacock Group Limited” United Kingdom GBP300 - 60 Investment holding
®E 300 g% REEMR
eServices Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
B0 100,000/ 7T TEXH
Ever Eagle Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EEAARES (E REER
Glory Sino Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
EEER RS (E HEXK
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMBARZ2RE @)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation/ of issued to the Company
registration ordinary share/ FRTELERERD®
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
MR, BERTEBRRE
2% AU ES S b HEfRAEE HE Mg FEXK
Golden Rules Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BEERAF BB 18T RERR
IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBERRES (E REER
IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
RBERRES (E HEX
IGCS Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
EE 287 TEXY
International Laboratory Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of laboratory
Services Limited N 17T services
R E RSB AR RAtRTE RS
IS0 International (Holdings) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of technical support
N 10087T and management
services, and trading of
home lifestyle consumer
electronic products
RUEM SRR
BERY  RFXEHE
EfERESD
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding and
RBHARES 50,000 7T procurement agent

REERRRERE

pRnEneEsRAT —2-ases 113



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT ¥R M ok
30 April 2015

—T-RFMA=+H

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT Z2RE @)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation/ of issued to the Company
registration ordinary share/ RAREEREB DL
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
EMRL, BRTEBRRE
8 AP E LS E A RAEE B Mg TEXK
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Procurement agent
B 10,0008 7T REBRE
Linmark Development (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Procurement agent
EBHERARES (E REBRE
Linmark Electronics Limited** United Kingdom (GBP12,500 - - Dormant
gl 12,500 K45 BEXK
Linmark Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
RBHEARES 17T RERR
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding,
W (%) BRAR Bk 2B procurement agent and
trading of merchandise
RERR - REBRE
LEmES
Linmark International Bangladesh Taka4,120,000 - 100 Procurement agent
(Bangladesh) Ltd.* Fa)liEad 4,1200003 K REEAIE
Linmark International Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Hong Kong) Limited N 200,000 /87T procurement agent

MEER (BE) BRAR

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015

REERRREAE



16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMBARZ2RE @)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation/ of issued to the Company
registration ordinary share/ ANEEGRER DL
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
EMRL ERTEERRE
28 ERUSES SE HEMRAEE E& Mg TEXK
Linmark Merchandise Consultancy People’s Republic of RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing
(Shenzhen) Limited* China AR5 1,500,000 7T consultancy and product
MEE RS s B EH ORI i development services
BRRA RIS RN
N EmbIE RS
Linmark Westman British Virgin Islands US$11 - 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited EEERRES e REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
MEERRA 30 BT BEXK
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
REHRARES (E BEXK
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
B 1000087T LEX
Pacific Technologies Limited* United Kingdom GBP45,000 - 60 Dormant
G 45,000 48 TmE
Power Path Limited™ Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Dormant
BEARLR" & 18T BEXK
Tamarind International British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited RBHRRES (B AR

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

116

16. RMB AT Z2RE @)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation/ of issued to the Company
registration ordinary share/ RABEERER D
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
MR, ERTEBRRE
28 AU ES S E AEfRAEE & Mg TEXK
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
Bk 187 trading of merchandise
REZREAME
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) Peaple’s Republic of RMB5,500,000 - 100 Procurement agent and
Limited™* China AR 5,500,000 7T trading of merchandise
REAES (LB)ARRA  HE RBRENERE
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd." Bangladesh Taka20,000 - - Dormant
oyl 200005R LEXG
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding and
EBEERRES (E provision of market trend
consultancy services
REZR LR TS
BB ¥R AR
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of market trend
R REABR AR 30 2B consultancy services

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMBARZ2RE @)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation/ of issued to the Company
registration ordinary share/ ANEEGRER DL
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
HR A ERTEBRRE
28 ERUSES SE HEMRAEE E& Mg TEXK
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited ~ Thailand Ordinary shares - 100 Procurement agent
RE Baht5,880,000 and R
preference shares
Baht6,120,000
LBk 5,880,000 R4k
REER
6,120,000 %= &k
Westman (Singapore) Private Limited ~ Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
g 200,000 J15% 7T R
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
BRBRAF B 100,000 7 EEXH

*%

Dowry Peacock Group Limited and Pacific Technologies Limited were dissolved
on 9 June 2015.

Linmark Electronics Limited was dissolved on 21 October 2014.

On 3 February 2015, 100% equity interest in Power Path Limited was
transferred from Tamarind International Limited to the Company.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited and Tamarind Trading
(Shanghai) Limited are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the law of the People's Republic of China. They were not audited by Ernst
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global
network.

Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd. was dissolved on 4 February 2014.

##

*%

Dowry Peacock Group Limited 1 Pacific Technologies

Limited ER =T —RFNANLBARER -

Linmark Electronics Limited BN =Z—MN%F+ A
—t+— B

R-ZE—AF-_A=H ' BEEMRAFMH100%
&4 A Tamarind International Limited 8 EE AR A
o

WIF BB LK E TR B IR Lok E
FHED S AT R AR B PAER o

MERRESHARINERRTARRELE
5 (L&) BRARTIRET BURREM BINGE
B - ZERALIFFAEBRAK G EBAT
AR R 2K & 5T BN T 2 BB B P
¥ o

Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd. B A == — P04 — A
Y fREL o

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. R—RXEEQATZRE
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z=mE
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FErx FET
Unlisted investments, at cost R ETIRE (REA) - -
Share of net assets JEREEFE 10 10
10 10
Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows: REBEEAAZFBAOT

Percentage of

Particulars Place of BB
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
RRERTRG
8 ZFE MR EB EE REE BHAE TEEH
(CSC Consultancy Co,, Ltd.  Registered capital of People's Republic 50 50 50  Dormant
R AER A RMB1,500,000 of China EEXYG
FMERARE ]
1,500,000 7T
The investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the N—REENAIZEZETIEARA B BERE
Company. B
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TEEIITBEAZAEFBES =S AT 20
Group's joint venture which is not material. FEE R o
2015 2014
- —F—mF
US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEH FER F=T
Share of the joint venture's loss for the year JE(EEENRFEEER
and total comprehensive loss for the year FELHEEEERE - ©
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEEREGENTZ
investment in the joint venture "B ZBIRAE 10 10

1 1 8 Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015



18. DEFERRED TAX 18. EFEMHIH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the year FRNECHBARE (BE)ZEBHWT -
are as follows:

Deferred tax assets BELEBIREE
Decelerated Decelerated
tax depreciation tax depreciation
allowances allowances
WEBLIE RRT IR
wERE IrERE
2015 2014
— —T-F
US$'000 Us$'000
Group TEH FErx F=r
At beginning of year REA] (1) (21)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the statement SERAIBZE R (FTA), k%2
of profit or loss during the year (Note 9) RIER A (M 9) (3) 10
Gross deferred tax assets at end of year RERZBIERIBEERE (14) (1)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAE
Accelerated Accelerated
tax depreciation tax depreciation
allowances allowances
R B E InERARIE
wERE FrERE
2015 2014
—E—REF —EF—UF
US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEE FER FET
Gross deferred tax liabilities at beginning REA R ZRIETIE
and at end of year AfEEss 2 2
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

18. IEFEFIIE (&)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BHEEEY  ETEEMBEENEBED

liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes:

EMBARRARPE G o AT TR 75 A 8,
B Z AS BRI RSO -

2015 2014
—E2-HfF —T—MmF
US$'000 us$'oo0
Group AEE FER FET
Deferred tax assets RIET IR A E (14) (1)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIEAE 2 2
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE VMR R IER 2
consolidated statement of financial position RIEIREEFE (12) 9)
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EWE S RX
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the )5/\¥|§d:ﬁﬁ;ﬁ EWE ZEEFIRBRERH Y
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: RO
2015 2014
S —T—mF
Us$'ooo US$'000
Group rEE FER F=7T
Within 30 days 30 KA 3,197 3,871
31 to 60 days 31 £ 60K 299 1,188
61 to 90 days 61E 90K 540 737
91 to 365 days 91 %2 365K 270 469
Over 1 year BB —F 74 342
4,380 6,607
Impairment BB (144) (386)
4,236 6,221
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivables balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of the trade receivables approximates to its
fair value.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

19.

FEWE 5 R (&)
AEERRF2EFBRAETEUEEAR
BT M RP—MERHERBEMNKE-
ZEEH—KRA0ENK - BEZFHER
1;.%[552%5 REBFBKE AR WK E Z -
IR MR BRI S YRR A EE
Fq A EREEERR =aRAEEET
e mBR N 2 5 AEBWERE
BREZEFEHRFEANERRRE K
Hi oz BB - BURE SRRV T
FE - -BKESERZEAERELATE
HE o

RN E SRR BEREZSIT

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—mEF

US$'000 US$'000

Group rEE FER F=E7T
At beginning of year REH] 386 467
Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) ERERRERE (H3te) 125 27
Amount written off as uncollectible HsE A~ Uk e 2 o8 (365) (106)
Exchange differences ME N ZRE (2 (2)
At end of year REL 144 386

The individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount before provision of US$144,000 (2014:
US$386,000) relate to customers that were in financial difficulties
or were in default of payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered.

BERIREEAES14400% T (T — M
F 1 386,000 7T ) WERIREE 5 FEUER K
T E B SRS EAEERBZREP
B ZEEWERRFEH R UKE -
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. @W%%E‘E?ﬁ(ﬁg)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered AEBEREZEWE FRRZRER DT
to be impaired is as follows: R
2015 2014
—E-REF —mE
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FER T
Neither past due nor impaired I 4 260 B OB 2,301 3,752
Less than 3 months past due wHE DR =@ A 1,897 2,415
3 to 6 months past due BmEA=ZNEA 38 54
4,236 6,221
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a I 4% 180 B ol R B 2 FE BGRIE A R K E T
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no B ZERFPOHBYEENDE -
recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a B8 B3 B N AROR (B 2 FE R IR B — HE R R
number of independent customers that have a good track record SEERUABRTEHB BUYRFER - 1R
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of the BRAELR  EFRADARBBEEMRE
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of HREREE ARAEEERTEEAE
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit g ARRBZEESRD T 2ERE -
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
=
20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. fiRE « RE R A BRI
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE KATH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF =—B-RF —T-QmOF
us$'ooo US$'000 Us$'ooo US$'000
FErx = FErx FET
Prepayments FELNE O 1,186 581 59 2
Deposits e 498 540 - -
Other receivables E b U kI8 1,621 1,301 - -
3,305 2,422 59 2
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The N EEEYEBHKORE - 5T A L&
financial assets included in the above balances relate to 2 & RYE S BT B A R B 2 IR WG
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. BEM -
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. BERBRESEHEER
Group Company
rRH NN

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —_FT-MOF ZEB-HF —T—NUF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER FET FER FET
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 17,044 14,611 425 248

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to
approximately US$1,602,000 (2014: US$1,765,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
the Mainland China Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RMER  REBUAREIEZES
K SR 1T 4582 491,602,000 7T (Z B —PU 4 -
1,7650003%7T) - AREATBRERAER
fhEHE - R - RIFR R A2 INEE B
GHIREE SERNEERERATE A&
B r] B R T INE RS 7 R1T
BARE SR AEMER o

RITEREFRARTERNEFEZ T B
MEFFE - EMERFERZEFRHH—H
E=EAAAE  RIFAKEZAKREFH
EME > BREEHEHPEFRIAERGFE -
RITERDEFRRNBEOENRERZEE
RIFERTT °
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22. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade

22. BHEZRR

payables as at the end of the

RBEEHR BENESERRERARZ

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRECOMTIAT ¢
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
Us$'ooo Us$'000
Group rEE FER F=7T
Within 30 days 30 KA 3,752 4,190
31 to 60 days 312 60K 908 1,234
61 to 90 days 612 90K 5 37
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365K 5 146
Over 1 year Bl —F 92 75
4,762 5,682

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 60-day terms.

ZERNESERATIAE

RERIBME -

A — %32 60

-

23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BErtEARHEMEMAFIE
Group Company
AEE N
2015 2014 2015 2014
=F-H5F —T@UF Z=B-HF —T-NOF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER F=7T FER F=7T
Accrued expenses JEEtE A 3,895 3,365 185 182
Other payables E b e FRIA 7,269 6,310 - -
11,164 9,675 185 182

124

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term

of two months.
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

24. RERKER

2015 2014

—E-hF —EF—UF

Note US$'000 US$'000

Group REH M5E FER FET
Defined benefit plan ERRENET S (a) 598 725
Other long term post-employment benefits  E ftb & Hi{E B :RIK1EF (b) 211 280
809 1,005

Notes:

(a)

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its qualifying
employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits at 3% of their final salary on attainment of a retirement age of 55.

According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is obliged to
pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability or death, post-
employment benefits based on the number of years of services and final
average salary. The Group carried out an actuarial valuation as at 30 April
2015 of its obligation for post-employment benefits payable to its employees
in Taiwan.

The trustees review the level of funding in the plan by the end of each
reporting period. Such a review includes the asset-liability matching strategy
and investment risk management policy. This includes employing the use of
annualities and longevity swaps to manage the risks. The trustees decide the
contribution based on the results of the annual review.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the life
expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2015 by Hsu Mao-Chin
Actuary, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

EREAEE
AEEREMEAERBBRERIEHETHE
RS - RIBZATE - 1B EJE 55 BURINFBREF
BREXBEEHE 30 ZRKBH o

RESEERRER  AEEAREREREX
NERK - BRKFHAFA BN WIREE
BRERBFHRZEFOF S TRIKEH -
AEER-—Z-RFMNA=TARBEEERK
BREEET - RZBEME -

ERARSEREHRBEZAENELKT -
ENEREERBRYRERRERREZR
K BEREAFERSHEHEERR - FFEA
RBEFERBERREMK -

HEHEIERRAR RALMENEHRBE
TSERHBILTE -
R R A BB E - 9=

—RENA=1+ABEFEIBEEHMRRAE
L EERE M ERET -

BEMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 24. EERKEFR (&)

Notes: (continued) izt - (88)
(a)  Defined benefit plan (continued) () TEEREAGE (HE)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period RBERRRAZ T ERERROT ¢

were as follows:

2015 2014
—E-IF —T-mE
% %
Discount rate BRI & 2.0 20
Expected rate of salary increases TERFSIgRE 3.0 3.0
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of RBERRCEABRREERBRESTAT ¢
the reporting period is shown below:
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in net defined in net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
EEENERE EEENERE
T R
R =180 i, Gl BES R #h0, Gr4)
% US$'000 % US$'000
FEx FEx
2015 —Z-RF
Discount rate Elapire 0.5 (35) 0.5 38
Future salary increase REFEEER 0.5 38 0.5 (34)
2014 —ZT—EF
Discount rate BRI & 05 (38) 05 43
Future salary increase ARFEBRER 1.0 89 1.0 (73)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that FlBEREIM 2 AR BRERREERR
extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligations as a result of PEAZAEZEMEHCREENETFEN
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting HEMET °
period.
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (continued)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

in respect of the plan are as follows:

24. BERAKERN (@)

feE - ()

() EEBFEE (4)
WA IBERERFTEBRERENT

2015 2014

—E-AF kS

Us$'000 Us$'000

FER FE7T

Current service cost B RRFEA A 13 13
Net interest FEFE 14 10
Net benefit expenses recognised in administrative expenses ~ FATTIR B HERR 2 18 FI F S F 58 27 23

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan

assets are as follows:

ERENEEMEEEZATELHNOT :

Pension cost charged to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains|(losses) in other comprehensive income

RESRMBZBKERE REM2ERAENBYE /(B8
Actuarial  Actuarial
changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from included
Current included changesin  changes in in other
At beginning service Net in profit Benefit demographic  financial  Experience comprehensive  Contribution  Exchange At end
of year cost interest or loss paid assumptions assumptions  adjustments income by employer ~ realignment of year
A BEER
A e 28 AR
BE Bk 2BEE  Ei2 2ERA
REQD BEAX  NEFR 20 CHERA 2BE2®  RERY  LRSE 2N BEfR ERSE RER
US$'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US'000 US§'000
Tin FER TR FER FER FEn TEn fin Tir FER FER FEn
2015
Defined benefit obligations 926 13 18 31 (152) (19) - 54 35 - (16) 824
Fair value of plan assets (201) - @ @ 152 - - 1) U] (175) 3 (226)
Benefit labilty Eflag 75 13 14 7 - (19) - 53 3% (175) (13) 598
014 —E-mE
Defined benefit obligations e RFI BT 875 13 13 2% - 2% 18 4% - (21) 96
Fair value of plan assets EEEZATE (172) - () 3) - () () (28 4 (201)
Benefit libilty EHlak 703 13 10 B - 8 16 4 (28) (17) 725

BEMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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24. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 24. EEERKER (@)
Notes: (continued) it (&)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EERE A8 (F)
The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund administered REEZ EREEFERTIM—RB A EBNER
by the government of Taiwan. The major categories of plan assets as ZEGEL - SEEEFEHIEZTRERE
a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets of the centrally SFEEELBNTFELAED AT

administered fund are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—mEF
% %
Equity instruments RATE 50 53
Debt instruments B TR 28 34
Deposits R 19 10
Others EAth 3 3
The Group expects to contribute US$24,000 to its defined benefit plan in AEBEHAR T —RF 2 ERBHNEHRE
2016. 24,0003 7T °
The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the RBEHAR EEENEETFHRE123F -
reporting period is 12.3 years (2014: 12.7 years). (ZZ—WF : 1274F)
(b) Other long term post-employment benefits (b) HihRHESENKRER
The balance represents provision for long service payment as required by ERDIEETRVEREMERZHRARK 2
certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable when employment B o RIERANME S EIEFRINE BAT - siE
is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee BN B FERE B SRR AR S e A AR LB A28
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. sV
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A&
Shares fiz 2
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
Us$'ooo US$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: VETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 &% &A% &
US$0.02 each 0.02 T 2 E AR 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
684,705,279 (2014: 683,569,279) ordinary 684,705,279 (— % —PU%F :
shares of US$0.02 each 683,569,279) HXHXETE
002tz ERmk 13,694 13,671
During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 1,136,000 (2014 F N+ 1,136,000 ( = ZF — PO 4F : 500,000) {3
500,000) share options were exercised at the subscription price of Eﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ’]w%ﬁéﬁ? BARE @R 0.70
HK$0.70 (2014: HK$0.70) per ordinary share (Note 26), resulting the B (ZZE—F : 0.70/87T) ZRABBETT
issue of 1,136,000 (2014: 500,000) shares of US$0.02 (2014: US$0.02) & (FizE26) » BEE(EE1T1,136,000( —ZF— m
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately F : 500,000) REAREBE0.02ETL(ZF—
US$102,000 (2014: US$45,000). An amount of approximately US$26,000 F002ETT) 2 KRDIERRER B %E
(2014: US$12,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to the (FBRFASZAT) 49 102,000 37T (ZZE— P4 -
share premium account upon the exercise of the share options. 450005 7T ) ° MIBREEITERIR - 2L

26,0003 70 ( —F — P4 : 12,0003 7T ) (88
e i AR R R R BER o
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26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A Share Option Scheme (2002 Share Option Scheme") was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then
sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The Company
terminated the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme ("2011 Share Option Scheme") pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011 Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2021. Under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Board or a committee thereof
may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price per share of at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the
relevant option; and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer,
provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than the
nominal amount of one share. Written acceptance is required
on acceptance of the grant of options. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme to be adopted by the Company from time to time
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in
cash.

26.

BB ST 2

KRR ZBREANS( B2 _FBKRE
HE )R -—EE—ENA -+ -BRE
ERE—RRBAZAERMERR 2
B RER NS ke Y AEEE
EEBZAERAL - ARFIDHRER -
T——F N \A+IhBEARFKRRASF
AELBRZ —BLBERBFRELE=-ZF
R AERT B IR AN — A B AR A T B
([ZB——EBREFE]) - —F——F
BREASE—EAERE_ZT=_—FI
BE+E - BEBE_T——FHERETE
BT EZR BN BERERTAE
BALTUARBRRRRD  BFRRBEER
LBV BRETEG 2B RMERAIA
ANR—BRBRMREEBRELRBEER
ZUWmE: RNBRATEmzTH KT
BERANARFBRMRBESLEBHNR
EEEBZFHURME(URSEHE)
HEAT 18 (B £ m a0 ] NASE R — A% ) 2 @
B AEMATRENERERARHE
FEW - RE - —FBERETERAKR
RATEE FRAZ TAEMTEERE
B RITEZBRETERREITZRG
BELER - TEBEADRTED TR
AN 2300 ° AN B A TE Sk i E B T IAIR
+ B8 B o (2 (T BE AR o

BEMRPFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. ,E%H’NEE*%U(%E)
The movements in share options under the 2002 Share Option UNTAEFA-_ZZ _FHEKEE T 2B
Scheme during the year were as follows: IS e
2015 2014
A —T-F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
hn#EFg il B
TEE  BREE 1B BREHAE
HK$ per share '000  HK$ per share ‘000
BRET T4 BRET N
At beginning of year REF 0.700 3,034 0.803 17,200
Exercised during the year RERNBEITE 0.700 (1,136) 0.700 (500)
Lapsed during the year RERD KK 0.700 (175) 0.830 (13,666)
Cancelled during the year RERNEEH 0.700 (1,723) - -
At end of year RELR - - 0.700 3,034
As at 30 April 2014, share options outstanding had the following N-E—NEPMAB=+H " kIT{FEIRRE
exercise periods and exercise prices: ZITEEA R ITEEI T
2014 —E—-OF
Number of options Exercise price” per share Exercise period
BREHE BITEE" 171 H
‘000 HK$
T BT
3,034 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015

—T-EFN\A-t+HBEE
—Z-hFN\AZTWH

*  The exercise price of the share options was subject to adjustment in the case of Y AR TR A AR sk B AT AT IR sk L b KR UL
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital. B BRECZITEEDERERAE -
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26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
No share option was granted during the year (2014: Nil).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

26.

B RERT &l (a0
FRLEEHBRE(CF—0F : §) -

EROUABRES N2 BREZ 2 FETE
RBANR - SR HERANE L B HE
et - MR K % S BB R 2 R R %
fF o TRINMERZEAFHBAIERR :

25 August

Date of grant 2009
—ZETNF

e anl =R NAZ+HH
Share price at date of grant (HK$ per share) R B B2 IR fE (FRET) 0.70
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) ETFHRE (BRAET) 0.25
Expected volatility (90) TEHAR 18 (00) 165.11
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 3 B 1) 2% (00) 1.55
Expected life of options (year) BN 2 FERTHARR (47) 3.5t0 4.5
Dividend vield (%) 1% B 2 (o) 8.89

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Company had no share options
outstanding under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 61
and 62 of the financial statements.

27.

BRRZEFHRIIBRBEBE=ZFZESL
BBFHE RURRARELEZITERE
A o FHHIKIE RN T RE - BB EIRIE
ER/RRKBE HER  ROKKERER -

B IBARIE Y 2t M AR TE
2B .

RBEEPRRR AT HHREEAAEER -
AR EEMRE -TT _FHEREST
SR M RIARTTE < FEAAE -

f#E
(a) *KHE
AEBRAFENBAFEZHES

Bz RaEEHR -
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27. RESERVES (continued) 27. @& @)
(b) Company (b) Z&AF
Share  Capital
Share option redemption Contributed  Retained
premium reserve  reserve  surplus®  earnings Total
BRE 45EE
BREE it fiff BHEH REEA &t
Note US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
i3 TZrx TEn TEr FEr  FER FER
Balance at 1 May 2013 R-E-—=FRA—-BEH 2711 226 48 9946 42717 37,208
Total comprehensive income EEZENA
for the year fer - - - - 510 510
Issue of shares OE 35 - - - - 35
Exercise of share options BiTfFERE 12 (12) - - - -
Share options lapsed during the year ~ FRAM 2 BB IE - (145) - - 145 -
Share premium reduction BRI B (12,800) - - 12800 - -
Distrioution Pk 12 - - - (12863 - (12863
Final 2013 dividend paid ENZE-=FRERE 12 - - - - (s (1,054
Interim 2014 dividend paid BERZE-RERERE 12 - - - - (879) (879)
At 30 April 2014 RZE-MFNA=1H 9958 69 48 9,883 2999 22,957
Balance at 1 May 2014 RE-MERA—-REH 9958 69 48 9,683 2999 22957
Total comprehensive income EEZEYNA
for the year k] - - - - 463 463
Isslie of shares I 79 - - - - 79
Exercise of share options BTk % (26) - - - -
Share options lapsedjcancelled during  FREM, /78
the year 2B - 43) - - 3 -
Final 2014 dividend paid ENZE-MERHRE 12 - - - - (1083 (1,089
Interim 2015 dividend paid ENZE-0FFHRE 12 - - - - (843) (843)
At 30 April 2015 R-F-ZFMA=tH 10,063 - 48 9883 1599 21,593
Representing: K
Final 2015 dividend proposed BE—Z-RFERERE - - - - 226 26
Others Hft 10,063 - 48 9,883 1373 21,367
At 30 April 2015 RZE-REMA=1A 10,063 - 48 9,883 1599 21,593

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of the Company is
distributable to equity holders. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due : or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.
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28. DISSOLUTION OF A SUBSIDIARY 28. BH—KWERF

2014

—E-mF

Note US$'000

k=3 FEx

Net assets dissolved B BEFE -
Exchange reserve realised S fEEER 138
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R —RXWB AR ZEE 6 (138)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BR—RWBARIZRE R
=

the dissolution of a subsidiary ReEEER ZRAFE -
29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. AREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RIEHR - NI BImE N mREE 2 %
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RBENOT :
Group Company
rEH AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RHF _—TWMOF ZZE-HF _—TEOF
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'ooo Us$'000
FErx F=T FER F=T
Guarantees given to banks in RETUTEHFZ
connection with facilities A mRERITIER
granted to: ZHER
Subsidiaries REPNG]] - - 21,283 21,283
As at 30 April 2015, the banking facilities granted to the R-ZE—AFMA=+H8  BEXQGM
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by RITHEL 2 EERME THB AR ZRITH
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately B 1B A #6,720,000% 7T (ZF— O£ -
US$6,720,000 (2014: US$6,700,000). 6,700,000 7T °

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30.

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters,
furniture and equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

REHERH
AEEREELEERHTAEETRA
TEf - BIME  RMREHE - ZSH
E2HAE - FEASZ GREEOETE
AT

RZZE—RAFMA=+H AEERET
AHEEERER TIIBH BTN ZREK

follows: SEESHKIBLAT ¢
Office premises Furniture and
and staff quarters equipment

WAEBEUREIEE BRI RRME
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T-MF Z—B-HE ~—TNOF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group AEE FErx FET FER F=7T
Within one year —F A 1,855 2,328 119 121

In the second to fifth years, E-FEFERF

inclusive (BREREEWF) 1,479 2,988 271 345
3,334 5316 390 466

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no operating
lease arrangements (2014: Nil).

31. COMMITMENTS 31.

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note
30 above, the Group had the following capital commitments for
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment at the end of the
reporting period:

REMKR > ARRYEREREHER
(=T —mF : |) -

3]

B b S RE 30 st 2 S22 EAHESN - A

TRAAKRENBSHREBEME  BF
B2 EAREIE -

2015 2014
—E2—FF —E—OF
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FERT FET
Authorised, but not contracted for BEREERETL) 3 -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any RIBEHIK - AT W EEAEREE(—
capital commitments (2014: Nil). = —P4F : 4E)
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

32. BEREALRS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BAMBHRREMBOAAZRS
these financial statements, the Group had the following G REBFANEGREEALTHETIA
significant transactions with related parties during the year: TERRZS

Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-EF — T4
Name of related parties Nature of transactions Note Us$'000 US$'000
BREALTER REME FEE FEx F=7T
Sky Fame Group Limited Rental expense (i) - 204
REEEARAR B
Wellbuild International Limited Rental expense (i) 509 509
SEBRARAR e
Notes: fiET -

0]

(i)

Sky Fame Group Limited ("Sky Fame") was 100% owned by Mr.
WANG Lu Yen, an executive Director during the period from 1 May
2014 to 23 February 2015, and his spouse during the term of Tenancy
Agreement (as defined below). The rental expense was determined
based on the market rate and floor area.

Mr. WANG Lu Yen is a director of Wellbuild International Limited
("Wellbuild", together with its subsidiaries, the “Wellbuild Group").
The rental expense was determined based on the market rate and
floor area.

(i)

REEHZE(ERE T FHA - 758
SEBERAR (TR AERRELE (R
—E—MEFRA—BE=ZT—HE=A
ZT=HHRARARTES) REREBEE
#A eI 2EMERS RER
HEEE °

IREELERSRERARAA(R
Bl ZREMNBARASREAIBER
BzEE -HeREXN2EMERS
RBEEREE
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Commitments with related parties

136

(b)

(i)

Linmark (HK) Limited (“Linmark HK") entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement") with Sky
Fame whereby Sky Fame agreed to lease to Linmark
HK a residential apartment for a term of 24 months
commencing on 1 May 2013 at a monthly rent of
approximately US$26,000 (equivalent to HK$200,000).

On 29 October 2013, Sky Fame gave a two-month
written notice to Linmark HK to terminate the Tenancy
Agreement with effect from 29 December 2013.

Tamarind International Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the "Tamarind Group") entered into
a master lease agreement with Wellbuild whereby
Wellbuild Group has agreed to lease to Tamarind
Group certain portion of a commercial building in
Shanghai, PRC for a term of 3 years commencing
on 1 April 2012 at a monthly rent of approximately
US$42,000 (equivalent to HK$330,000). On 31 March
2015, the master lease agreement was renewed in
respect of the properties for a term of 6 months
commencing on 1 April 2015 with the same terms
as the previous master lease agreement. The Group
expects the annual rent payable to Wellbuild for
the year ending 30 April 2016 to be approximately
US$212,000 (equivalent to HK$1,650,000).

Balances with a related party

At 30 April 2015, the Group has prepaid rent and rental
deposit of US$24,000 (2014: US$24,000) to a related
company.
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32. BEREALIRS @
BB RS A+ 2 G

(b)

(if)

ME(FEB)BRAR(IMESE
B HEpET VRS ([HE
EHE])  BUBEERERMK
EEBELE—FEEAE - H
—E—=—FHA—BH#EFAEH
2418 A - = AMH£4)26,000%7T
(8557 200,000 7T) °

RZBE—=F+A=+h1A8"
RS S SR WAL
ERAKIAERE -
—=F+_A-t+ABBEM -

Tamarind International Limited
(ERENBARGBIXE
TtEE) HEEZITVYREER
Z BUEERSERENAAE
#942,0003 7T ( #8 & 7 330,000
BIL)MAEHEEBREE—E
KA EFZEERE 2HRE
By B -_FTE——_4FMWA—H
i BH=F RZZT—HEF
—A=+—HB MZEDEE
FREERZE BT —RF
WMA—BRAHBSEAR - HiIF
RESLRT 2 B E R ZEER -
AEBEHEE T — X FH@E
AR=1THBLEFEENEZREZF
FEH % #9212,000% T (HER
1,650,000 7T ) °

RZZE—RAFNA=+H A£EHE
Ef—REEEAFRZEMNEE K
e HEE2400F (=T —MHF -
240003E7T) °



32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32

(d)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

. EEEATRS (#E)

d AEEIBEEASZFHMH

2015 2014

—E-RF —F—F

Us$'ooo US$'000

FER FET

Short term employee benefits MHEREERA 1,229 1,656

Post-employment benefits 1B BRIKAER

- defined contribution plans - EREH RS 81 72
Total compensation paid to TRTEEEEAE

key management personnel ZENAaEE 1,310 1,728

Further details of Directors' emoluments are included in
Note 7 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a), (b) and (c)
above constitute continuing connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

The related party transactions in respect of item (d) above
constitute connected or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempt
from reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

EEHFME—PHBRRPHRE

B&E7 o

£ (@)~ (b) B () BREREA T ZHEK
EHRBNE UAEFTREZHBRIERS -
BET FHRAE VAZEZHBERTE -

EX()ENEREALRZEKR EHAA
FUABRREZAESFBRAERS -

RIELETRRNE 14AE - BHRETHE -

FEES RSB RRIEZRE -

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH

137



Notes to the Financial Statements

R TS ¥R M ok
30 April 2015
—T-RFMA=+H

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. €T RE¥ER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial 2T AERRERARCERERANT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Group rEHE
Financial assets SREE
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
EXRENFE MHLESREE fit
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-1f “E-@mF  CB-Ef CSMF  ZE-Bf  CEMF
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
i3 Tin i Tin i Tin i
Available-for-sale financial asset AT HERREE 15 - - 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables WEHE 19 4236 6,221 - - 4236 6,221
Financial assets included in STABNTE R
prepayments, deposits ﬁfﬂﬁg%ﬁﬁz
and other receivables SREE 20 2,119 1,841 - - 2119 1841
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBaZERR o 17,044 14611 - - 17,044 14611
23,399 22,673 84 84 23,483 22,751
Group KEH
Financial liabilities SEEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBHEAATRzemBE
2015 2014
—EB-AF —=—mF
Note US$'000 US$'000
FaE FEx FET
Trade payables JETE SRR 22 4,762 5,682
Financial liabilities included in STARESTE A R HAM
accruals and other payables [ERNFRIEz SRIBE 23 7,269 6,310
12,031 11,992
Company /N
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables
BERRERRE
2015 2014
—EB-AF —=—mF
Note US$'000 US$'000
FaE FEx FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIAER 21 425 248

RBEHR - AARLEEREHEE(Z
T—F : &) -

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have
any financial liability (2014: Nil).
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Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015



34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF  34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the
Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as

EMIBREZAFERATFERER

AEBRARNGBEeHMTAZEAABERAF
B(REHEEAEQNFESEMEEERIN W
T

follows:
Group KEE
Financial asset SRMEE
Carrying amount Fair value
REE A¥E
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RHF _—TWOF ZE-HF _TOF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx TFET FEx FET
Available-for-sale financial asset AJ it HE & @& E 84 84 84 84

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
financial liabilities included in accruals and other payables
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset is
determined with reference to the price quoted by the relevant
club.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instrument:

Asset measured at fair values:

Group
As at 30 April 2015

ERENGRELARNESEER BRE
SRR - BNE SRR - st ABMFA
BehEMBYRFAZSMEE « it AR
AAERAREMENRBECEREBEZIRF
B HEAEREERS  RARELTIH
RzETARZEHREEHME -

AL ESRMEECATENK2ZEER
S BERET -

TR AEESMTAZ AV EFAEE
A
BAVEFEZEE :

REE
R-E-—HRFENMA=1+AH

Fair value measurement using

RUTRIEETAFEE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERME BEATEE BEAXTATH
ZHE BWAE HWAE
(8—18) (8=18) (8=F8) &t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FER FER FER FER
Available-for-sale financial asset At HE S RIE E 84 - - 84
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34.

S5

140

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 30 April 2014

34.

TMIAEZAFERAFEER
(#)
R-ZE—MFEA=1H

Fair value measurement using

ANTEBETAHENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERMSE EAABRE  EXRTAEH
2B HAE R AE
(B5—FE) (B=f@) (B=fE) A|E
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F=TT T FET FET
Available-for-sale financial asset AJ it &4 & &= 84 - - 84
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value TR F-ERE_EZRALEQFET
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into EZHERE TEERENERBE-F (=
or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil). T—UE &) o
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair RZF-HAFMA=FA KRB WELE
/N7 ] = o = ( — T __ .
value as at 30 April 2015 (2014: Nil). AR AFEFEZEHEE(ZT—HF :
) o
The Company did not have any financial assets and financial RZZF—RAFMA=1TH  AARWEE
U AT = =h > = = ( —
liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 April 2015 (2014: Nil). MRAVEFEZEREERSRAB(Z
T | o
35. IR KREEBZERBEEK

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. It is, and
has been throughout the year under review, the Group's policy
that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIRABEEBERBUER (#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk A = =2 b
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest AEEAZHMSHNEEEREZHR
rates relates primarily to the Group's short term interest-bearing EERZEF RGBT BIRITERER -
bank deposits with a floating interest rate.
The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge 75 [ 3 4 5T S AR B R AR HR A 49 LA
its exposure to interest rate risks. TR @\ o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRGEAEMBHMAIEREZABETERN
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held BRAT  AEEHBRBANEN R AEE
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and the Group's equity. T E RS IR ] sE B BRI -
2015 2014
—B-1F a2
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit in profit
(decrease) before tax before tax
in basis points and equity and equity
BB BTRF BRBLAT & A
2 KR K
#n,/ (Rd) #m,/ (Rd) /(i)
US$'000 Us$'o00
Group rEE FER FET
United States dollar ET 5 8 7
United States dollar E (5) (8) (7)

BMRBFEEARAR —F-hFFH
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

142

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Company's functional currency is the United States dollar
and the functional currencies of majority of the subsidiaries
are the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The Group's
transactions, trade receivables and trade payables are mainly
denominated in these two currencies.

As the exchange rate of the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar is pegged, management considers the foreign exchange
risk in this respect is not significant. The Group has certain
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as the net foreign
exchange exposure of the foreign operations is not significant, the
Group does not actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities held
in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Certain monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

35.

MiEEEEEE R RER (#)

Foreign currency risk (continued) ShiEE [ B ()
2015 2014
—E-HF —EF—UF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in profit
currency rate before tax before tax
SMNEER BRBE A& R BRAE A& A
LA (TR 80 CRd) i Ofd)
% us$'o00 US$'000
Group REHE FErx F=
If United States dollar (ESyI)
weakens against RMB AREBEE 5 70 77
If United States dollar (E)
strengthens against RMB AREEHE (5) (70) 77)
Credit risk FERR

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale financial
asset, trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

o R 27
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—E REMA=+A
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. EEREEHZERBEE @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) S8 = Bz ()
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HARAEBReHERAR REERIFNE
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations =HARG FRLAEERHEERL - EEE
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by Eﬁ’iqumiﬁgﬁ/ﬁTﬁ B AT
geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the XEE R E R - ZJXE.EAJ?EHQ%%
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of credit BRRES :FEEF'E(B*EI’M;E W E
risk on the Group's trade receivables, as the amounts due from KEBE AKIEEL 2,061,000%75(:%—@
the largest five debtors amounted to approximately US$2,061,000 F :2191,000%7T) * hAKEEKE ZER
(2014: US$2,191,000), representing approximately 48.7% (2014: FRAY487% ( —ZF — PO : 35200) ° & TR
35.2%) of the Group's trade receivables. In order to minimise KEERR EBE —iris;EE%ZHFAﬂ@F !
the credit risk, management continuously monitors the level of LA B R BV B BRER IR 3 1T 8 - RUK R B &
exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken promptly o SBER B AL R o $’E§7TH—;4@,,\%
to reduce the risk exposure or to recover overdue balances. The A WENEFPEVHEE  UHRE
Group will also continuously exploit new opportunities and forge PR -
relationships with new customers with the aim of broadening its
clientele.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to BERAANEEREKRE SRAEENEER
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19 BHE— P EERRTBEHREWT 198
to the financial statements. 7= o
Liquidity risk REE LR
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity AEEBNEEREANDHMBRITEE &
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities. BEoFERERET N 2 MEFTE -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at BIBEEATAEMBR NI TR E BN &R
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual EMRzeMABINMBERAT ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
Within one year
—FR
2015 2014
—E-REF —mE
Us$'ooo US$'000
Group REE FER FET
Trade payables JERTE SRR 4,762 5,682
Financial liabilities included in accruals and ST AESH B A R E MR FRIE
other payables ZE@mAas 7,269 6,310
12,031 11,992

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015



35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

At 30 April 2015, the utilised banking facilities of US$6,720,000
(2014: US$6,700,000) granted to the subsidiaries subject to
guarantees given to the banks by the Company were repayable on
demand.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 30 April
2015 and 30 April 2014.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders'
equity.

G5

MR EREE R RER (&)

REE SRR (B
R-ZZE—HEWMA=1+0 " KEQFER
MR QB RBITIEERZEBARITE
56,720,000 7T (ZZF — U4 : 6,700,000 &
JL) BIREKEE -

EXREE
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ERELERERIBRINEARLE - X
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AEERBEEANBZEHERELEARRE
REHHEETHE REFAAEEARR
B AREREHBEHBRRIKMN ZBEE
FBREEERNKETHR - FRAEERE
AzBE BRERIKEFRBEE_T—OF
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—Z2—AFMA=1H

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

146

Share subdivision, change of board lot size and change
of company name

According to the circular published by the Company dated 29
May 2015, the Board proposed (i) that each of the existing issued
and unissued shares of US$0.02 each in the share capital of
the Company be subdivided into five (5) subdivided shares of
US$0.004 each (“Share Subdivision"); (ii) to change the board
lot size of trading in the shares from 2,000 shares to 10,000
subdivided shares as soon as possible after the Share Subdivision
becomes effective; and (i) to change the registered primary name
of the Company from “"Linmark Group Limited" to “"Daoche Global
Group Limited" and to adopt "®BAIRIKEEFRAF" as its
secondary name to replace the existing Chinese name of " #2845
BB BR A 7" which has been used for identification purposes only
("Change of Company Name").

The Share Subdivision and the Change of Company Name were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2015. The Share
Subdivision became effective on 23 June 2015.

With effect from 23 June 2015, the board lot size of trading in the
shares of the Company had been changed from 2,000 shares to
10,000 subdivided shares.

On 25 June 2015, the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda issued a
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and a Certificate
of Secondary Name certifying the Change of Company Name
with effect from 23 June 2015. The Company is carrying out the
necessary filing procedures with the Companies Registry in Hong
Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622,
Laws of Hong Kong).

Daohe Global Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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36.

Sy

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)
Subscription of new shares under general mandate
On 17 June 2015, a total of 20,000,000 ordinary shares
(representing approximately 2.84% of the then issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the subscription immediately
after completion of the allotment) were allotted and issued
to six subscribers pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement dated 1 June 2015 entered by and
between the Company and the subscribers.

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated
1 June 2015 and 17 June 2015 in relation to the subscription of
new shares under general mandate. The net proceeds from the
subscription after deducting all relevant costs and expenses were
approximately HK$64,000,000 (equivalent to US$8,205,000). The
Company intends to use the net proceeds from the subscription
to enlarge its capital base and prepare for any development
opportunities as and when they arise.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 14 July 2015.

36.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEBHRE

RESULTS EE
Year ended 30 April
BEMA=1RHILEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F —Z--f 2= —T-MF ZEBE-1f
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F=n T=n TE=n FT=r TER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&&E75) (1&&:7) (&E7) (& &7)

Revenue Wrzs 95,763 100,621 110047 103397 97,872
Cost of sales HEMAK (72,791) (77,123) (82,459) (76,427) (72,879)
Gross profit EF 2972 23498 27,588 26970 24993
Other income HipA 12362 1399 1023 1346 977
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHREY (22,007) (22014) (23,543) (23,329) (23,292)
Restructuring costs BHER (1,556) - - - -
Loss on deregistration of branches BUHEM S AR 2 R - - (193) - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries PERBAR S 13 191 - - -
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary FH—FMBRRZEE - (97) - (138) -
Operating profit R 784 2977 4,875 4,849 2,678
Interest income FIBHA 5 55 55 7 7
Share of loss of a joint venture [ElE—ReenaBiE (2) (1) (1) (1) -
Profit before tax BRIEAT A 787 3,031 4,929 4,855 2,685
Income tax (expense)/credit FrER (FY), /% (142) (247) 403 (399) (1,009)

Profit for the year attributable to RRAREE AEL
owners of the Company FRERA 645 2,784 5332 4,456 1,676
Dividends RE 272 1212 2,459 1942 1,069
Distribution ik - - - 12,863 -

Earnings per share (US cent) BRER (EN)
Basic* A~ 0.02 0.08 0.16 0.13 0.05
Diluted* s 0.02 0.08 0.16 0.13 0.05
* Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015, as further explained in " ERZT—RFSNAMRMIFANZEEL AR - B

WKRMAE 6 IEE— TR -

Note 36 to the financial statements.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 30 April
REA=+8

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

—£—% ZT--Ff Z%T-=F CZL-@EF ZCZB-5f

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

TEn FT=r T=n = TER

Non-current assets FEREBEE 26,899 27,540 27,488 26,895 26,773
Current assets MEEE 25,398 28512 33937 23820 24,585
Total assets EELE 52,297 56,052 61425 50715 51,358
Current liabilities RBBE (14398) (16,039) (17,700) (16993) (17,961)
Non-current liabilities e =l (1,008) (1,014) (979) (1,005) (809)
Total liabilities BELE (15,406) (17,053) (18,679) (17,998) (18,770)
Net assets EEFE 36,981 38,999 42,746 32717 32,588

wiEneEERAT —T-naan 149



- Corporate Information

ANCI- )

Non-executive (not a member of the Board)
WANG Lu Yen (Honorary Chairman)

Non-executive Director
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman)

Executive Directors
ZHANG Qi (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (President and Chief Financial Officer)

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (General Counsel and Head of Development and

Investments)

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Executive committee

ZHANG Qi (Chairman of the Committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil

Audit committee

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Remuneration committee

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

ZHANG Qi

Nomination committee

ZHOU Xijian (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Company secretary
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

Registered office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business
1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Principal share registrar and transfer office
Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

Auditors
Ernst & Young

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central, Hong Kong

Principal bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Level 10, HSBC Main Building,

1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.
48th Floor, Citibank Tower, Citibank Plaza,
3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

R F &R R
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Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
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e

Shareholder Information

AR &

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002
Stock Code : 915
Board Lot : 10,000 (with effect from 23 June 2015)
Par Value : US$0.004 (with effect from 23 June 2015)
Trading Currency : HK$

Financial calendar 2015

Financial year ended

Full year results announced

Register of members closed (for ascertaining
shareholders' rights to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)

Annual general meeting

Ex-dividend date for final dividend

Register of members closed (for determining
entitlement to final dividend)

Record date for final dividend

Despatch of dividend warrants

Interim results to be announced

30 April 2015
14 July 2015

25-27 August 2015
27 August 2015
31 August 2015

2-4 September 2015

4 September 2015

on or about 11 September 2015
mid of December 2015*

subject to change

Final dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 0.05 HK cent per ordinary
share (after Share Subdivision) in respect of the year ended 30 April 2015. Subject to
shareholders' approval, the final dividend will be paid in cash to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 4 September 2015.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about Friday, 11 September
2015.

Closure of register of members for final dividend

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend in respect of the
year ended 30 April 2015, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 2 September 2015 to Friday, 4 September 2015, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1
September 2015.

Closure of register of members for annual general meeting

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders' rights of attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 25 August 2015 to Thursday, 27 August 2015, both days inclusive.
In order to be entitled to attend the annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 24 August 2015.

Shareholder services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the Company's Hong
Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share registrar
promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Daohe Global Group Limited

(formerly known as Linmark Group Limited)

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2753 7373
Facsimile: (852) 2721 6554

Email: ir@daoheglobal.com.hk
Website: www.daoheglobal.com.hk

*

For identification purpose only
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A

Daohe Global Group Limited
ENRLEEER AT
(Formerly known as Linmark Group Limited)

(HEMEEEERAT")

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

EENENEEBREC—HNEEERRERI1123E

Tel E5E 1 (852) 2753 7373
Fax 8K : (852) 2721 6554
Website #83% : www.daoheglobal.com.hk
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